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CFPA, LLC

Independent Auditor’s Report

County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland
L eonardtown, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the fiduciary fund activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2006, which coliectively comprise the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsiility of the
County's Commissioners for St. Mary's County’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Board of Education of St.
Mary's County, Maryland, which represents 6% of the assets and 45% of the revenues of the total reporting entity.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been fumished to us, and our
opinions on the financial statements, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Board of Education of St.
Mary's County, Maryland, are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overalt financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in ail material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the fiduciary fund activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland,
as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows, where
applicable thereof, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generalty accepted in the United
States of America.

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 20,
2006, on our consideration of the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internat control
over financial reporting and compliance and the resuts of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit
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The management's discussion and analysis, the statement of revenues, expenditures, encumbrances and
other financing sources and uses - budget (non-GAAP) basis and actual — general fund, and the schedules of
employer contributions and funding progress for the Sheriffs Office Retirement Plan are not a required part of the
basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that coilectively
comprise the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland's basic financial statements. The combining
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements
have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our
opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
schedule of revenues and other financing sources-budgetary (Non-GAAP) basis and actual-general fund presented
on pages 105 and 106, and the schedule of expenditures and other financing uses-budgetary (Non-GAAP) basis and
actual-general fund presented on pages 107 through 111 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. These scheduies have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

. C
La Plata, Maryland 47 Cf A L
October 20, 2006 ”’7 V{% + ‘%@7 ‘
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Annual Financial Repert of St. Mary's County, Maryland presents a narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of St. Mary's County Government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. We
encourage readers to use the information presented here in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial
statements and the accompanying notes to those financial statements.

Financial Highlights

« The assets of St. Mary's County Government exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$150.8 million (net assets). Approximately $2.9 million, or approximately 2%, is attributable to the County's
enterprise funds, which include business-type activities for medical adult daycare services, recreation and parks
and the Wicomico Golf Course. Approximately 30% of the total net assets, or $44.6 million (unrestricted net
assels), may be used to meet ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. Virtually all of the unrestricted net
assets are relfated to governmental activities. The unrestricted net assets for the enterprise funds total $761,437.
Other components of the net assets are $38.7 million of restricted net assets and approximately $67.5 million of
net investment in capital assets. The net investment in capital assets represents the capitalized assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and outstanding debt. The net investment in capital assets decreased from the prior
year due to the transfer of buiidings to the College of Southern Maryland (321,148,932} and the prior period
adjustment (54,943,630} that was recorded to write off those assets that had been previously capitalized as a
part of the initiat GASB34 transition, but which do not meet the threshold for capitalization.

e The Govemment's overall net asset position, excluding the impact of the prior period adjustment duscussed
previously, reflects an increase of $12.6 million over the prior year.

e As of June 30, 2006, the County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $85.7 miflion, an
increase of $12 million over the prior year. The capital projects fund reflected an increase of $189,131, while the
general fund and the non-major funds posted increases of $11.6 million and $159,798, respectively. The
County's governmental fund bafances at June 30, 2006 include $39.6 million for capital projects, $46.3 million in
general funds, and a deficit of $112,790 in other non-major funds. The general fund balance includes $780,034
that is reserved, the largest components of which are encumbrances and inventory. In addition, the general
funds reflect designations of approximately $31 mitlion, including a bond rating reserve of $9.7 miflion and a
Rainy Day Fund of $1.375 million. The balance has been designated for use in the FY2007 budget. The
significant level of designation for the FY2007 budget reflects the Board of County Commissioners' decision to
utilize $14.2 million of the fund balance to fund capital projects that, in the £Y2005 and FY2006 budgets, had
been programmed to be funded by the sale of general obligation bonds. This use of fund balance is estimated to
save the future debt service expenses that would have been required annually of approximately $1.14 million,
which would otherwise have been required based on a 20-year bond term. Two other significant designations
were to set aside $3.5 million for future funding of a trust to cover post-employment heaith benefits and also
$935,366 in one-time funding, including technology initiatives. The County's undesignated fund balance is
approximately $14.5 mitlion, and will be considered for use in the FY2008 budget. The non-major funds are
special purpose funds that correspond to special assessments, and a revolving loan fund set up to assist
volunteer fire and rescue squads in their acquisition of capital assets, including rolling stock and buildings. These
funds, by design, require the expenditures to be incurred by the County and then are reimbursed by various
entities pursuant to written agreements over varying periods of time, which correspond to the underlying asset.
These funds reflect deficits that increase when loans are extended and decrease as repayments are received,
ultimately netting to zero. The decrease in the capital projects fund balance reflects the fact that there was no




sale of bonds in FY2006; the proceeds from the FY2005 sale were used fto partialty fund the capital
expenditures,

*  The business-type operating activities reflect a net increase in net assets of $501,621, offset by a reduction of
$233,008 for the prior period adjustment to correct the capitalization of assets, discussed elsewhere. The
following information discusses the change in net assets, exclusive of the prior period adjustment. Fee-based
recreation activities posted a decrease of $47,395; however, this is after an increase in FY2005 of $165,823.
The long-term goal of these programs is to price the fees to break-even, recognizing that individual years will
vary, but no significant net assets should be accumulated. The Wicomico Golf Course reflects an increase of
$78,119. The net assets of the Medical Adult Daycare Fund increased $470,897; however, this is attributable
principally to a budgeted transfer in FY2006 from the general fund of $589,007, to offset the accumulated deficit
at June 30, 2004. Continued focus on this activity is expected in order to determine whether it can function as a
self-supporting fund or to consider alternatives for services or funding.

¢ At June 30, 20086, the unreserved fund balance for the general fund (primary operating fund) was $45.5 million,
or 30.5% of general fund expenditures, excluding pass-throughs. Designated fund batance of the general fund
was $31 million, or 67.3% of unreserved fund balance.

* St Mary's County Government's total general obfigation indebtedness, including general obligation bonds and
Water Quality loans, decreased by $8.3 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. Additions included
draws on the Water Quality Loan program financing of $735,110, as well as $1.7 million of exemnpt financing for
vehicles and equipment. During the year, the County accepted the transfer of a surplus school site, which
entailed the assumption of debt to be repaid to the State of $368,769. In addition, there were other State ioans
for capital projects in the amount of $242,895 and additional accruals for compensated absences of $171,508.
Payments on the debt totaled $8.7 million, with another reduction in the amount of $250,000, representing the
revision of estimated post-closure costs of the Jandfill.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to St Mary's County Government's basic
financial statements. St. Mary's County Govemment's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial staterments, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This
report also contains other required and non-required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial

statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of St. Mary's County Govemment's finances, in a manner comparable to a private-

sector business.

The statement of net assefs presents information on all of St. Mary’s County Government's assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of St. Mary's County Government is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the govemment's net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement
for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and eamed but

unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of St. Mary's County Government that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues (govermmental activities) from other functions that are




intended to recover alt or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of St. Mary's County Government include general government, public safety, public
works, health, social services, economic development, agricultural land preservation and recreation and parks,

- community services, planning and zoning, and permits and inspections. The business-type activities of St. Mary's

County Government include the Medical Adult Daycare Services, Wicomico Golf Course and the Recreation
Activities, including an indoor swimming pool.

The govemment-wide financial statements include not only St. Mary's County Government itself (known as the
primary government), but also legally separate component units. St. Mary's County Government has the following
component units; St. Mary's County Board of Education, St. Mary's County Board of Library Trustees, the
Metropofitan Commission, and the Building Authority. Financial information for these component units is reported
separately from the financial information presented for the primary govemment itself. The government-wide financial
statements can be found on pages 14 to 17 of this report.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain controt over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. St. Mary's County Government, fike other state and
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-refated legal
requirements. All of the funds of St. Mary's County Government can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the govermment-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources,
as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for govemmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the govermmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

St. Mary's County Government maintains five individual governmental funds: general, capital projects, special
assessments, fire and rescue revolving funds, and emergency support. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance for the general, capital projects and non-major funds {special assessments, fire and rescue revolving,
and emergency support funds). The detail for the non-major funds is presented as part of supplementary information
foliowing the notes to the financial statements.

St. Mary's County Government adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. To demonstrate
compliance with this budget, a budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund, the County’s
primary fund. The basic govemmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 18 to 19 of this report.

Proprietary funds: Proprietary funds, also known as Enterprise funds, are used fo report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. St. Mary's County Government
uses enterprise funds to account for its Medical Adult Daycare Services, the Wicomico Golf Course, and fee-based
Recreation Activities. The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 21 to 23 of this report.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the govemment-wide financial statements because the resources of




those funds are nof available to support St. Mary's County Government's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be

found on pages 24 and 25 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements are
part of the basic financial statements and can be found on pages 26 to 100 of this report.

Other information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning St. Mary's County Government's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary information can be found on pages
101 and 102 of this report. Other supplementary information can be found on pages 103 to 113,

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's overall financial condition
and position. In the case of St. Mary's County, assets exceeded liabilities by $150.8 million at the close of the current
fiscal year. St Mary's County Government's net assets are divided into three categories: invested in capital assets,
net of related debt; restricted net assets: and unrestricted net assets. Approximately 44% of the County's net assets
reflect its investment in capital assets net of depreciation {e.g. land and easements, buildings, machinery,
equipment, infrastructure and improvements), less any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The County
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens. Consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Restricted net assets represent 26% of total net assets. Restricted net assets are resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. Unrestricted net assets of the government have a balance
of $44.6 miilion (30% of total net assets) which may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors. Of this amount, unrestricted net assets for business-type activities are $.8 million. '

ST. MARY'S COUNTY GOVERNMENT'S NET ASSETS

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities Tofal
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
ASSETS
Current Assets $116,726706  $101.577478  § 1,557,686 $998,153  §$118284,392  $102575.631
Cther Non-Current Assets 23901018 26,830,467 0 0 23901016 26,839,467
Capital Assets, net of accumulated
depreciation 181,502.250 191,783,751 2,255,090 2,564,131 183,757,340 194 357 882
Total Assets 422120072 320210696 3812778 2562284 325942748  _323772.980
LIABILITIES
Curment Liabilities 34,056,885 30,973,199 693,063 661,144 34,749,948 31,654,343
Non-current Liabilities 140,196,719 148,760,067 193,412 223452 140,390,131 148,983,513
Tota! Liabilities 174,253,804 179,733,260 886.475 904,596 175,140,079 180,637,856
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 65,352,573 69,704,223 2,164,864 2,423,897 67,517.437 72,128,120
Restricted 38,662,401 39,717,598 0 0 38,662,401 39,717,598
Unrestricted 43,861,394 31,055,615 761,437 23379 44 622 831 31,289,406
Total Net Assets 147,876 368 140,477 435 2,826,304 2,657,688 150,802 669 143135124

Tolal Liabilities and Net Assets 322120677 $32021069 33812776 35602284  $I25042748  $323772.980

At June 30, 2006, St. Mary's County Government reports positive balances in alf three categories of net assets as a
whole.




The following table indicates the changes in net assets for governmental and business-type activities:

ST. MARY'S COUNTY GOVERNMENT'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

Govemmental Activities Business —Type Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $10,572,846 $9,921,564 $4,008,730  $3,596,194 14,671,576 13,517,758
Operating Grants and Contributions 18,411,865 19,355,216 459,142 577,631 18,871,007 19,932,847
Capital Grants and Dedicated Fees or Taxes 1,356,048 5,588,002 0 0 1,356,046 5,588,002

General Revenues:
Property Taxes 63,198,955 58,187,880 0 0 63,198,955 58,187,880
Income Taxes 56,687,230 54,148,444 ] 0 56,667,230 54,148,444
Other Taxes 26,129,701 23,137,885 0 0 26,129,701 23,137,885
Investment Eamings 3,253,211 1,093,882 40,342 17,855 3,293,553 1,111,737
Miscellaneous 4,103 257 6,894 490 0 0 {4.103,257) 6,994 490
Total Revenues 175,506,597 178427 363 4598214 4191680 180,104 811 182,619,043

Program Expenses:
General Govemment 17,648,333 17,296,982 ] 0 17,648,333 17,206,982
Public Safety 25,803,603 23,521,544 0 0 25,803,603 23,521,544
Public Works 12,528,085 11,787,965 0 0 12,528,005 11,787,965
Health 1,202,193 1,205,276 0 0 1,202,193 1,205,276
Social Services 6,958,356 6,073,461 0 0 6,958,356 6,073,461
Primary and Secondary Education 80,440,070 73,893,720 0 0 80,440,070 73,893,720
Post-Secondary Education 2,389,048 2,195,193 0 0 2,389,048 2,195,193
Parks, Recreation, and Cutture 3,702,080 3,014,943 4,096,593 3,985,614 7,798,683 7,000,587
Housing 920,395 1,343,327 0 0 920,395 1,343,327
Libraries 1,964,882 1,789,465 0 0 1,964,882 1,789,465
Conservation of Natural Resources 314,206 276,734 0 0 314,206 276,734
Economic Development and Opportunity 3953972 2,136,544 0 0 3,953,972 2,136,544
Debt Interest 4,478,364 4,463,972 0 0 4,478,364 4,463,972
Inter-govemmental §5,370 48,936 0 ¢ 55,370 48,936
Other 1,038,068 1,309,481 i} 0 1,038,066 1,309,481
Total Expenses 163,397,043 150357 543 4,096,593 39856814 167493636 154,343 157
Change in Net Assets 12,109,554 28,069,820 501,621 206,066 12,811,175 28,275,886
Net Assels - Beginning 140,477,436 112,407,616 2,657,688 2451622 143,135,124 114,859,238
Prior Period Adjustment {4710,622) 0 (233,008} 0 {4,943.630) 0
Net Assets - Ending $147876.968  §140477436 $2026301  $2657.688 $150802660  §143.135.124

Governmental activities: Govemmental activities reflected an increase in St. Mary's County Government's net
assets of $12.1 million, before the effect of the reduction due to the prior period adjustment of $4.7 million. The
govemmental funds reflected a net increase of $12 million.

Business-type activities: Business-type activities reflected an increase in net assets of $501,621, before the effect
of the prior period adjustment noted previously. Wicomico Golf Course fee-based activities and Medical Adult
Daycare both posted increases, which were partially offset by the decrease in Recreation and Parks.
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, St. Mary's County Government uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compiiance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds: The focus of St. Mary's County Government's governmental funds is 1o provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing St.
Mary's County Government's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2006, St. Mary's County Government's govemmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $85.7 million, an increase of $12 million over the prior year. Approximately $47.1 million, or 55% of this total,
constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion, including $19.7
million for the 2007 budget. The application of this level of fund balance to the subsequent year's budget is discussed
elsewhere in this section. Reserved fund balance includes $39 milfion for capital projects as well as approximately
$.8 million committed to liquidate encumbrances, for inventories, or dedicated for a variety of restricted purposes.
The reserved fund balance does not significantly affect the availability of fund resources for future use.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of St. Mary's County Government and is central to the budget process
and management of current resources. At June 30, 2008, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $45.5
million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare bath unreserved fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 30.5% of total general fund
expenditures, excluding pass-throughs, while total fund balance represents 31% of that same amount. The elevated
level of fund balance reflects several unusuai revenue and expense deviations. These variances are largely in
property taxes, recordation fees, investment income, and selected expense accounts. However, they are not
expected to continue to recur, as the Board has reduced tax rates for several years in a row. Additionally, to the
extent that the positive revenue varances reflect non-recurring levels of activity and transactions, the Board's
phitosophy is to build a budget based on sustainable levels of revenues, and use any excess generated in one year
to fund non-recurring items in a subsequent budget. For example, because of the current economic and real estate
market, the collections of recordation fees, transfer taxes, and impact fees are at substantially higher levels than
would be expected to occur over a long-term horizon. Generally, it is the County’s philosophy that laxes and fees
should be charged to match current programs and levels of activities rather than to build fund balances. Thus, the
FY2007 budget incorporated hoth capital project pay-go transfers and reductions in tax rates, based on expected
levels of recurring vs. non-recurring levels of revenues. With the low property tax rate, which was again reduced
effective July 1, 2006 from $.872 to $.857, and an income tax rate that is less than the maximum allowed by the
State, and which was also reduced effective January 1, 2006 from 3.05% te 3.00%, the County has maintained
ample capability for revenue enhancement, should future needs arise. At the close of FY2005, the Board designated
$7.5 million as an economic stabilization reserve, funded by FY2005 savings, to address costs that might occur due
to BRAC and/or shortfalls in State funding for school construction.  Now that the Base Realignment and Closure
{BRAC) report is released, and there is little tf any loss of activity on the horizon for the County, these funds became
a part of the FY2007 budget, which allocated a total of $14,228,277 of accumulated fund balance from FY2004 and
FY2005 as pay-go for capital projects. Similarly, the positive fund balance generated in FY2006 will be considered in
the FY2008 budget process, with emphasis placed on funding significant and needed non-recurring items, capital
expenditures, increasing pay-go or reducing debt, and/or providing tax relief.

The fund bafance of St. Mary's County Government's general fund increased by $11.6 million during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006. The key factors contributing to this net positive variance are as follows:
= Property tax revenues exceeded budget by $2.9 million, a reflection of the increase in the value and number of

properties assessed,




» Recordation taxes exceeded the amount budgeted by $4 6 million. As discussed elsewhere, the County budgets
a level which is estimated to be sustainable. Significant variances result from transactional activity fluctuations,
which are not expected to occur annually,

Investment income exceeded the amount budgeted by $2.7 million. The increased rates. reflecting general
market conditions, combined with the significant unreserved balances on hand, yielded much higher than
budgeted investment income.

Positive expenditure variances were realized throughout County departments, a reflection of conservative
budget estimates, strong management of expenditures to match budgeted priorities, and continued focus on
efficiency and effectiveness. Significant individual items include a health insurance premium settlement (refund)
under our retrospective rating arrangement that reduced employer costs by approximately $.6 million and lower
than budgeted payments on exempt financing due to the deferred timing of the draws.

The capital projects fund has a total fund balance of $39.6 million, which includes $14.8 million of unspent bond
proceeds as well as greater than budgeted collections of impact fees and transfer taxes, as well as net savings due
to projects requiring less than the amount of resources budgeted. These excess funds are then available to fund
projects in future approved capital budgets. For example, the FY2007 capital budget included $8.2 million of such
accumulated excess funding. Also included in this balance is $662,000 designated in reserve, available at the
direction of the Board of County Commissioners, to cover unanticipated costs, through a budgetary process.

Proprietary funds: St Mary's County Government's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. At the end of the year,
unrestricted net assets of the Wicomico Golf Course Fund accounted for $927.371, the Recreation Activities Fund
reflected net assets of $6,494, and the Medical Adult Daycare Services reflected a deficit of $172428. On a
combined basis, there was a $501,621 increase in net assets, before the effect of the prior period adjustment,
principally attributable to the subsidy from the general fund to the Medical Adult Oaycare fund. Factors concerning
these funds’ finances are addressed in the discussion of St. Mary's County Government's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The final budget for the General Fund was approximately $101,000 higher than the original budget. The increase
reflects principally the net effect of new or increased grants received. During the year, revenues exceeded budget
and expenditures were less than budgetary estimates. Because of these positive variances, there was no need to
draw upon the appropriated use of fund balance for operations, originally budgeted at $3,026,965 for FY2008.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets: St. Mary's County Government's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2006, amounts to $183.8 million {net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes fand, construction in progress, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure and land development rights. The net decrease in St. Mary's County Government's investment in
capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 was $10.6 million. This reflects reductions due to the transfer
of assets to the College of Southern Maryland and the prior period adjustment. Without these two items, which
totaled $26.1 million, the net increase was $36.7, an 18.8% increase over FY2005. it should be noted that the capital
asset balances include the County's infrastructure (i.e., roads), as the County has fully implemented the requirements
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statement 34. in this, the final transition year under GASB
for implementation of Statement 34, the County corrected prior capitalized assets, principally equipment. The
statements reflect a prior period adjustment of $4.9 million for items included in the capital asset records at the time
of initiat implementation that, upon re-evaluation during FY2006, did not meet the cost threshold of $5,000, and
therefore should have been expensed for financial statement purposes.




ST. MARY'S COUNTY GOVERNMENT'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(At Cost, Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Land $19,403,327  $18,830,327 $1,078,666 $1,078,666 $20,481,993 $19,908,993
Building and Improvements 55,287 596 71,298,279 745,236 788,121 56,032,832 72,086,400
Facilities Under Construction 3,280,438 2,504,611 0 0 3,280,438 2,504 611
Solid Waste Facilities 10,739,846 10,663,660 0 0 10,739,846 10,663,660
Infrastructure 80,154,307 71,786,627 314,563 331,246 80,468,860 72,117,873
Vehicles 3441478 2,879,680 82,138 316,638 3,523,616 3,196,318
Furniture and Equipment 9,195,258 13,830,567 34 497 49,460 9,229,755 13,880,027

$181,502.250 §$191,793,751 $2.255.090 $2.564,131  $183757340  $194,357.882

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

s College of Southern Marytand building and improvements previously carried on the County's books were
transferred to the College.

» Surplus property transfer (Carver Elementary School building, improvements, land and related debt) from St.
Mary's County Public Schools to the County finalized in FY2006.

e $3.7 million in buildings and improvements were placed in service in FY2006, including Charlotte Hall Visitors
Center, Lexington Park sidewalk/streetscape project and asphalt overlay project.

s Approximately $12 million in roads were added to the County system, including transfers from third parties.

« Improvements at Dorsey Park, Three Notch Trail, Chaptico Park and Nicolet Park, as well as Parks ADA Access
improvements, were completed and capitalized in FY2006, totafing approximately $1.1 million.

» Vehicles (with a total cost of approximately $300,000} were purchased to replace aging vehicles for the Sheriff's
Department, St. Mary's Transit System, and other government activities.

Additional information on St. Mary's County's capital assets can be found in Note 4 of this report.

Long-term debt: At June 30, 2006, St. Mary's County Government had the following total general obligation bonded
debt, and other similar obligations outstanding, as set forth in the table below. The full faith and credit and unlimited
taxing power of the County are irrevocably pledged to the levy and collection of taxes in order to provide for the
payment of principal and interest due on the bonds.

ST. MARY'S COUNTY GOVERNMENT'S GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT
Primary Govemment

Amounts due within

June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006 one year
General Obligation Bonds(GOB) — County $113,135,000 $105,460,000 $7,745,000
Less: Amount Deferred on Refunding (1,807,220) (1,783,219} (11,556)
Water Quality Loan 5,934,960 6,175,920 502,266
State Loans 702,241 860,128 95,085
Surplus Property Transfer of Debt 0 368,769 83,864
Exempt Financing {Equipment & Vehicles) 1,174 547 2,368.079 799.438
$119,139,528 $113, 449,677 $9,214,097
GOB sold on behalf of St. Mary's Hospital $23.630.000 $20,835.000 $1,295.000

Business-Type Activiies

Amounts due within

June 30, 2005 June 30, 2006 one year
Exempt Financing (Equipment) $126.225 $90.225 $36.000
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St. Mary's County Government's fotal general obligation bonded debt decreased by a net $10.4 miltion, principally
due to principal payments, offset by draws for exempt financing of vehicles and equipment, as well as additions to
various State loans as weil as adjustment of accruals for compensated absences. Repayments include $2,795,000
for the Hospital loans; the Hospital fully reimburses the County for costs and debt service payments related thereto:
the debt service is not funded by general funds of the County.

St. Mary's County Government has maintained an “AA-“ rating from Standard and Poor's, an "AA" rating from Fitch
Ratings, and an “Aa3" rating from Moody's Investors Service, Inc. These ratings were all confirmed as a part of the
last bond issue in 2005. The debt affordability guidelines for St, Mary's County Govemment were previously set by
the Board of County Commissioners, on the advice of the County's financial advisor. The guidelines were approved
at a debt to assessed value of 2%, and debt service as a percent of current general fund revenue of 12%. The
County is within these parameters, and menitors capital budgets and 5-year plans to ensure it remains within the

limitations.

As a part of the FY2007 budget, the Board of County Commissioners took another step to positively address debt
capacity. in addition to a capital program that is monitored and evaluated based on needs, priorities, and capacity,
the Board applied just over $14 million of fund balance as pay-go for prior approved capital projects. The County's
ratio of debt to assessed property value at July 1, 2006 (including the impact of the FY2007 approved budget), was
estimated to be 1.55%, compared to the July 1, 2005 level of 1.84%. Additionally, the ratio is expected to decrease
over the B-year period of the capital plan. Similarly, the debt service percentage estimated for the FY2006 budget
was 8.61%, while FY2007 is estimated to be 7.09%, and this ratio is also expected to decline further during the

period of the 6-year plan,

Additional information on St. Mary's County Government's long-term debt can be found in Note 7 of this report,

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

» Net taxable income for calendar year 2004 (the latest data available) for County residents was approximately
$1.6 biliion and continues to demonstrate heathy growth, with a 5-year average annual growth of 7.2%.

*  According to information released by the State, our assessable base increased 10% - the largest in recent years,
compared to what had been an average annual increase of approximately 6%. This reflects both increased
assessed values and a growth in the assessable base due to new construction.

» The business community in St. Mary's County has grown significantly following the realignment of Naval Air
Systems Command with a 90.7% growth in the number of technology firms since 1998. The growth in
technology firms experienced in St. Mary's County since 1998 developed immediately following the consolidation
of Navy aviation research, development, acquisition, testing and evaluation at NAS Pax River.

» The largest private employers in the County have increased their number of employees, and the Navy-related
employment is expected to maintain its current levels, with continued growth in private sector activity. There is
continued growth in the number and the diversity of high tech firms.

* Department of Defense capital improvement in St Mary's County continues to expand, with significant
commitments by the Government for programs such as the Joint Strike Fighter, the Presidential Helicopter, and
Unmanned Aerial Vehicle programs.

» Tourism has been strong, with increased numbers of visitors; there continues to be development of hotels and
expansion of accommodations, a reflection of the business growth as well as increased tourism opportunities
and activity.

» Commercial office space has increased; targe office management corporations are expanding their activities in
the region. Rapid demand keeps costs competitive.

* Median household income (363,250 est. 2005) is slightly below the State average, however is increasing at a
similarly consistent rate as the State and the tri-county area.

* The average unemployment rate for the County is 3.4%, and remains well below that of the State or the U.S.




Measures taken in FY2005 and FY2006 to balance tax relief as well as budgetary stability were continued into the
FY2007 budget process. The FY2007 budget reflected reductions in the property and energy tax rates. The
sustainability of the revenue stream needed to fund future operations was evaluated on a mulfti-year basis, and
revenues continue to be budgeted based on sustainable levels. For example, recordation and transfer tax revenues,
which affect the general fund and the capital budget, respectively, far exceeded the budgeted levels. However, the
FY2007 budget incorporated only a partial increase in the amount, as the Board of County Commissioners would
prefer to budget at levels that have a high probability of being able to fund. This then aflows any excess to be
reflected as fungd balance, and subsequently that excess is used to fund only non-recurring expenditures {such as
pay-go capital project funding, one-time technology allocations) in the subsequent year's budget.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the St. Mary's County Government's budget for the 2007 fiscal year,
resulting in a budgeted increase of 19.1%. However, this rate of increase is affected by the unusually high pay-go
transfer of $14.2 mitlion and the set-aside of $3.5 million to start funding the trust for retiree health. Absent these two
items, the net increase would have been a more typical 7.6%. In adopting the budget for FY2007, the County
considered long-term projections of revenues and expenses. The local economy is expected to continue to be strong
and reflect positive growth, and the Board expects to continue and expand its use of multi-year projections into its
FY2008 budget process to assure that adequate and sustainable resources are identified to address prioritized

needs — both capital and operating.

Continuing the discussion started in connection with the FY2007 budget, and as we approach the FY2008 budget
process, we are mindful of the impact of GASB45, the treatment of other post-employment benefits (OPEB).
Currently, the County and its Component Units fund post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
County, and each of the component units, contracted for an actuarial analysis of their post-employment liability, in
anticipation :of preparing for and complying with Statement 45. More detail is provided in Note 14 to the financial
statements. As a part of the approved FY2007 budget, the County designated $3.5 million from the FY 2005 surplus
to initialize the OPEB trust. This amount, at a minimum, serves to partially fund the annual requirements under
Statement 45. During FY2007, alternatives will be considered for both the benefit structure and the funding in order
to assure timely compliance with Statement 45, including identifying cost-saving changes to reduce the liability.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of St. Mary's County Government's finances for all
those with an interest in the Government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, St. Mary's
County Government, P.O. Box 653, Leonardtown, Maryland 20650, or via email at Finance@co.saint-marys.md.us.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Program Revenues

Capital Grants and

QOperating Grants and Dedicated Fees or
Functions / Programs Expenses Charges for Services Contributions Taxes Total Revenues
General Government $17,648 333 $6.070,520 $1,782928 80 $7.853,449
Public Safety 25,803,603 1,473,580 2815751 423,035 4,812,386
Putlic Works 12,528,095 1,251,805 9,134,066 0 10,385,871
Health 1,202,193 0 o 0 0
Social Services 6,369,349 0 4,027 289 0 4,027,289
Primary and Secendary Education 80,440,070 0 0 0 0
Post -Secondary Education 2,389,048 g 0 0 0
Parks, Recreation, and Culture 3,702,090 366,243 75,502 281,850 723405
Libraries 1,964 882 0 0 472,016 472016
Conservation of Nalural Resources 314,206 ¢ 0 0 o
Housing 520,395 895,007 16.144 0 914,148
Economic Development and Opportunity 3,953,972 78,415 458,087 0 536,502
Debt Interest 4,478,364 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 55,370 0 ¢ 0 0
Cther 1,038 066 436,276 0 179,345 615,621
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES §$162,808.036 $10,572 846 §18.411,865 $1,356,046 $30,340,757
Business - Type Aclivities
Recreation Activity $2,313,076 $2.219.694 $45,987 30 $2,265,681
Wicomnico 1,122,868 1,160,645 0 0 1.150 645
Medical Adult Daycare 660,649 129,384 413,155 0 542,539
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES $4,096 593 $3,509,723 $455,142 £0 $3,968,865
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $166,904,629 $14,082,569 $18.871,007 $1,356,048 $34,309 622
Component Uinits;
Board ¢f Education $163,475,081 $3,140,725 $26,275,900 $19,703,075 $52,119,701
Library 2,762,06% 250,341 652,217 4 $502,548
MetCom 9,955,963 11,053,981 0 0 $11.053,981
Building Authority 875,331 1,354,254 0 0 $1,394, 253
$177,068 444 $15,838,297 $29,928 117 $19,703,075 $65,470 489
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Income Taxes
Olher Taxes
Investment Earnings
Grants and Contributions Not Restricled to Specific Purposes
Value of Infrastructure Transferred to the County
Transfer (MADS Subsidy)
Miscellaneous
Total General Revenues
Transfers:
Cotlege of Southern Maryland buildings, improvements and land

Changes in Net Assels

Net Assets - Beginning
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this slalement.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Net {Expense] Revenue and Changes in Hel Assels

Companent LUnits

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activibes Total Board of Education Library MetCom Building Authority
(39,794,884) 50 (59.794,884)
120,991,237) ¢ 120,991,237}
(2.142,224) 0 [2.142,224)
{1,202,183) 0 (1,202,193
(2,342,060} 0 (2.342,060)
(80,440,070} il {80,440,070)
(2,389,048} 0 (2.389,048)
(2,978,595) 0 (2,978,585)
(1,492,866} 0 (1,492 866)
{314,206) 0 {314,206}
(6.247) 0 (6.247)
(3.417.470) 0 {3,417,470) |
{4,478,364) 0 (4,478,364) |
(55,370) 0 (55,370}
(422,445) ¢ (422,445}
13132, 467,279} $0 ($132.467 279)
$0 ($47,395) ($47,395)
0 3177 rr
0 (118,110 (118,110)
50 (5127.728) {$127.728) 30 50 30 30
($132.467.279) (8127728 ($132,595,007)
30 30 $0 {$411,355,380) $0 50 $0
0 ¥ 0 $0 (1,859,521} 0 0
0 0 0 $0 0 1,098,018 0
0 0 0 $0 0 0 518,928
30 30 30 {$111,355,380) {$1,869,521) §$1,008.018 $518,928
$63,198,955 %0 $63,198,955 30 $0 50 $0
56,687,230 0 56,687 230 0 0 0 0
26129701 o 26,129,701 g 0 0 0
3253211 40,342 3,293,553 545,957 7,748 160,8%9 11
0 0 0 125,362,592 1,781,142 0 0
11,253,790 0 11,253,790 0 0 0 0
{589.007) 589 007 0
5,791,885 [t} 5791,885 212,195 36,101 1,880,678 0
$165,725,765 $629.349 $166,355,114 $126,120,744 $1,824,991 $2,051,577 $11
($21,148,932) 50 {321,148,932) 50 $0 $0 $0
12,109,554 501,621 12611175 14,765,364 (34,530) 3,149,595 518,838
$140,477 436 $2.557 688 $143,135,124 $161,939,169 $1,642 294 $46,784,883 $1,298.607
(34 710,622) {$233,008} ($4,943.630) ($100,628)
$147 876,368 $2,926,301 $150,802,669 $206,704,533 $1,607,7654 $49,833,850 $1817 546

The accompanying notes fo the financtat statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006

Total Governmental

General Fund Capital Projecls Nor-Major Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $81,158,225 §0 30 $81.158,225
Due from other funds 0 38,146,275 1,309,501 40,456,176
Taxes receivable 1,569,209 0 0 1,589,209
Emergency Support taxes receivable 0 ¢ 28,325 28,325
Income tax reserve, funds held by the State 17,755,295 0 0 17,755,295
Special tax assessments receivable ¢ 0 1,903 1,903
Notes receivable, Fire and Rescue loans 0 0 237,472 237,472
Accounts receivable 12,633,678 3,606,464 0 16,240,142
Inventory 600,360 0 0 800,360
Olher 2,468 0 0 2,468
Fire and Rescue loans receivable, net of short-term portion 0 0 1,048,191 1,048,191
Special tax assessments receivable, net of short-term portion 0 o 2,017,825 2017 825
Total Assets $113,749,235 $42,752,739 84 643617 $161 145,591
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 32,127,318 $3,185,365 $358 047 35,670,760
Compensation-related liabilities 2538435 0 0 2,538,435
Deferred income tax distribution 17,755,295 4] 0 17,755,295
Deferred revenue 183,894 0 3,305,209 3,489,103
Other fiabilities 3,709,453 0 0 3,708,453
Due to cther funds 40,714 481 0 1,093,151 41807 632
Due to other governments 430,075 ] 0 439,075
Total Liabilities $67,467 951 $3.185,395 $4,756,407 $75,409,753
FUND BALANCES
Reserved $780,034 $38,905,232 ($1,084,977) $38,600,289
Urreserved, designated 31,021,448 662,112 972,187 32,655,747
Unreserved, undesignated 14,479,802 0 0 14,479,802
Total Fund Balances 46,281,284 39,567,344 {112,790} 85,736,838
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $113,749.235 $42,752730 $4,643617 $161,145,581

The accempanying notes to the financial staternents are an inlegral part of this statement.
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THE COUNTY CCMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

General Fund Capital Projects Non-Major Total
REVENUES
Property Taxes $6.3,198,955 30 30 §63,198,955
Income Taxes 56,687,230 0 0 56,687,230
Energy Taxes . 2683102 0 0 2,689,102
Recordation Taxes 11,309,680 0 0 11,308,680
Transter Taxes (including Agricutiure) 0 10,035,430 [ 10,035,430
Impact Fees i 4,139,145 0 4,139,145
Other Local Taxes 935,653 o} M 935653
Highway User Revenues 7,294 289 0 0 7,294 289
Licenses and Permits 1,267,425 0 0 1,267 425
Intergovernmental 6,705,837 3,457,070 261,028 10,422.835
Charges for Services . 5,268,972 0 Q 5,258,872
Fines and Forleitures 350,387 0 0 350,397
Special Assessments ] 0 79,345 179,345
Gther Revenues 7,522,082 0 1,207 552 8729534
Sub-lotal 163,219,622 17631645 1,647,925 182,499,192
Pass-Throughs 2,802 547 ¢ 0 2902547
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES §166,122,169 $17 621,645 $1647,925 $185.401739
EXPENDITURES
Generai Government $21 327,794 30 $0 21327794
Public Safety 24,514,116 0 1,245,709 25759825
Public Works 238171 0 0 4,354,111
Health 1,202,193 0 o 1,202,193
Social Services 3660789 o 0 3,660,769
Primary and Secondary Ecucation 54,446,259 16,853,774 2 80.400.032
Pasl -Secondary Education 2,346,763 0 0 2,346,763
Parks, Recreation, and Cuillure 2,976,249 ] Q 2976,249
Librares 1,781,142 0 0 1,781,142
Canservation of Naturaf Resources 314,206 0 0 314,206
Housing 902,308 0 o 902,306
Economic Development and Opportunity 2,520,186 0 ¢ 2,520,188
Capital Projects 0 6,217,755 [H 6,217,755
Debt Service - Principat 8,456,282 o 164,291 8,620,553
Debt Service - Interest 4,400,237 o 78127 ' 4,478,364
Intergovernmeniat 55,370 0 0 58,370
Other 1,038,066 0 0 1,038,066
Sub-totat 149,295,188 22171529 1488127 172,955,844
Pass-Throughs 2902485 0 s} 2902495
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES $152,198,583 $22171 529 $1.488127 $775,858,339
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expendilures $13,923 485 [$4,539,854) $158,798 $9,541 400
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Exempt financing proceeds $1,579,698 30 30 $1,679.658
Praceeds from Water Quality Loan 0 735110 0 735,10
State Loans ¢ 242,885 0 242,885
Surptus Property, Transfer of Net Debt 368,769 0 4} 368,769
Capital Projects - General Fund Transfer (3,751,010} 3,754,010 0 0
Transfer (MADS Subsidy) (589,007} 1] 0 (589.007)
Tolai Other Financing Sources f Uses ($2,291,550) $4,720.015 30 32,437 465
Net Change in Fund Balances $11,631,936 $139.131 §$155,798 $11,980.865
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of the Year $34,649,348 £39.378,212 {$272,588) $73,754.973
End of year $46,261,284 $39,567 344 ($112,790) $85,735,838

The accompanying notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this slatement,
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Reconciliations of the Governmental Funds to the Governmental Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2006

Balances reflected as Fund Bafance for Governmental Funds are different from Net Assets for Governmental
Activities because:

Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $85,735,838

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, are not reported in the
Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds 181,502,250

Debt, including bonds, loans, capital leases and the long-term portion of
compensated absences, is not reported in the Balance Sheet for
Governmental Funds. The amount reflected here is net of mortgages
receivable from St. Mary's Hospital of $20,835,000, but does include debt

applicable to assets reported in the component unit for the Board of Education
(119,361,720}

Net Assets - Governmental Activities $147,876,368
Amounts reported for change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds are
different from change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $11,980,865

Depreciation expense which is reported in the statement of activities, but not
reflected as an expenditure for governmental activities (6,670,672)

Disposal of capital assets which is reported in the statement of activities, but
not reflected as an expenditure for governmental activities (153,929)

Issuance of long-term debt, excluding amounts which are offset by mortgages

receivable from St. Mary's Hospital, and effect of refunding. This does include

debt applicable to assets reported in the component unit for the Board of

Education (3,280,755)

Repayment of debt 8,990,323

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The amount
reflected here is net of the cost of Buildings and Improvements transferred to

the College of Southern Maryland in the amount of $21,148,932.
1,243,722

Change in net assets of governmental activities $12,109,554

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Accounts receivable
inventory
Total Current Assets

Non-current assels

Capttal assets

Accumulated depretiation

Capital assets, net of accumutated depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Due to other funds

Accounts payable
Compensation-ralated liabilities
Deferred revenue

Nencurrent Liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more thar one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assels, net of retated debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assels

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FCR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2008

Medical Adult Daycare Recreation Activity Fund Wicomice Totat

30 $0 $5,745 $5,745

0 243,371 1,227,442 1,470,813
96,135 54,882 25,296 176,313
0 0 24172 24,172

96,135 298,253 1,282,655 1,677,043
0 128,874 3,800,463 3929337

0 {122,104) 11552,143} {1,674,247)

0 §770 2,248 320 2,255,080
$96,135 $305,022 §3,530,975 $3.932,133
$119,357 50 $0 $119,357
4,538 58,119 40,115 102,772
118,687 78,455 119,693 316,835
0 155,185 118,271 273,456

0 0 35,000 35,000

25,981 0 132,431 158,412
268,563 291,759 445,510 1,005,832
0 6770 2,156,004 2,164 864
{172,428) 6,494 827,311 761,437
(172,428) 13,254 3,085,465 2,926,301
$96,135 $305,023 $3,530,975 $3,832,133

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Medical Adult Daycare Recreation Activity Fund Wicomico Total
QPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $129,384 $2.219.694 $1,160.645 $3,509,723
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Services 438,704 $1,418,369 $639,855 $2,494 928
Operating Supplies 54,738 242,849 187,045 484,632
Professional Services 5,075 254,973 70,546 330,594
Communications 0 23,684 3313 26,997
Transportation 153,724 10,592 30,457 194,773
Repairs 0 2,262 12,298 14,560
Rentals 0 147 884 938 148,822
Public Utilities 7437 179,586 44,054 21,077
Insurance 0 Q 13,5985 13,595
Misceflaneous 971 3.853 3.000 7,824
Interest Expense 0 0 3,288 3,288
Equipment 0 27.825 20,495 48,320
Depreciation 0 3199 93,384 97,183
Total operating expenses $660,649 $2,.313.076 $1,122,868 $4,096,593
Operating Income (Loss) {$531,265) ($93,382) $37.777 ($586.870)
Naon-Operating Revenue
Interest income 0 0 40,342 40,342
Grants revenue 413,155 45,987 0 459,142
Generat fund subsidy 589,007 0 ¢ 589,007
Change in net assets $470,897 ($47,395) $78.119 $501,621
NET ASSETS
Beginning of the year (643,325) 65,698 3235215 2,657,688
Pricr Periad Adjustment 0 {5.039) {227 969) (233,008
Beginning of the year restated (643,325) 60,659 3,007,346 2,424,680
End of Year {$172,428) $13,264 $3,085465 $2,926,301

The accompanying notes to the financial stalements are ar: integral pant of this statement.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
Megrcal Adull Daycare Regreation Aclivity Fund Wicomico Talal
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Charges for Services 3172420 $2.128,127 $1.163838 $31.464 185
Personal Services (407 821) (3.405,722) {599.411) (2.412,954)
Qther Expenses {231753) (817 604) {395,003 (1544 360
et Cash Provided {Used) By Operaling Aclivibes 1$467,154) {$135 199) $169.224 1$463129)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTWITIES
el change in interfund loans {535 008) 149,212 {153,416) {539212)
Grani revenue 413155 45,987 0 459,142
Generat Operaling Subsidy §89.007 0 0 589 007
Nel Cash Provided (tUsed) By Nor-Capital and Related Financing Aclivities $467 154 $195,199 {$153.416) §508,937
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Conslruction / purchase of capital assets Q 0 (21.150) {21,150}
Principal payments on long-term debt 0 0 {35.000) {35.000)
Nel Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Aclivites 30 50 1$56,150) ($56.130)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income [H 0 40,342 40342
Net Change in Cash $0 $0 50 $0
CASH
Beginmng of Year ] 0 5745 5745
End of Year $0 50 $5,745 35,745
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING |
ACTIMITIES
Operaling Income {Loss) ($531.265) {$93,382) $3r77 (§586.870)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TC NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depraciation 0 3199 93984 7183
{Increase] decrease in accounts receivable 43038 {47.189) (12.515) [17.668)
{increase) decrease in invenlory Q o {2.653) (2,653)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable {9,808) {24,096) {(3.321) {37,225)
tncrease (decrease) in compensalon-relaled abibiles 30,883 10,647 40,444 £1.974
increase {decrease) in deferred revenue 0 {44,378} 16,508 {27 870}
Net Cash Provided (Used) By Operaling Activiies ' (3467,134) {$195.199) $169,224 ($483,129)
SCHEDULE OF NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Total capital asset additions $0 0 $34,927 $34.927
Less transfer of asset from other unds 0 0 {13.777) {13,777}
Nel ¢cash used for purchase of capital assets 50 50 $21,150 321150

The accompanying noles to Ihe financial stalemenls are an inlegral part of Ihis stalement
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

Sheriff's Office Retirernent Plan

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $211,615
Restricted cash and investments 24,394 240
Total Assets $24.605.855
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits 24,605,855
Total Net Assets $24.605.855

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan

ADDITIONS
Contributions - Employer $2,219,197
Contributions - Employee 242,906
2,762,103
Interest and Dividends 786,531
Realized Gain 12,689
Net Unrealized Gain on Investments 654 784
1,454 004
Net Additions $4.216,107
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits ($1,461,744)
Administrative (184,580}
Total Deductions ($1,646,324)
Change in Net Assets $2,569,783
NET ASSETS
Beginning of Year 22,036,072
End of Year $24.605.855

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary’s County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies

Reporting entity

St. Mary's County, the first Maryland county, was established in 1637. The Board of County Commissioners is composed of five
Commissioners elected for four-year terms. Four Commissioners represent specific election districts while the President of the
Commissioners runs at large. All Commissioners are elected by the voters of the entire County. The County operates under a fine-
organizational method, with a County Administrator being responsible for the general administration of the County government. The
Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the accounting for financial reporting, debt management, investment management,
procurement, and budgeting functions. The Treasurer is responsible for the collection of real and personal property taxes. The County
provides the following services: public safety, highway and streets, health and social services, recreation, education, public
improvements, planning and zoning, sewage and water treatment and general administrative services.

The financial statements of the reporting entity include those of St. Mary's County Government {the primary govemment) and its
component units. As defined by GASB Statement No. 14, component units are legally separate entities that are included in the
County’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operating or financial relationships with the County. The criteria for
including organizations as component units within the County’s reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, include whether;

¢ the organization is legally separate

the County Commissioners appoint a voting majority of the organization's board

the County Commissioners have the ability to impose their will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefittburden on the County

* the organization is fiscally dependent on the County

Based on the application of these criteria, the four organizations identified on the following page are considered component units of St.
Mary's County Government. Their financial data is discretely presented in separate columns in the govemnment-wide financial
statements. All discretely presented component units have a June 30 year-end.

Discretely presented component units

For financial reporting purposes, management has considered alf potential component units. The decision to include a component unit
in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
14, Defining the Governmental Reporting Entity. The basic, but not the only, criterion for including a potential component unit within the
reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is
financtal interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the
selection of governing authority, the designation of management, and the ability to significantly influence operations and accountability
for fiscal matters. A second criterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of public service. Application of this
criterion involves considering whether the activity is conducted within the geographic boundaries of the government and is generally
available to its citizens. A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the reporting entity is
the existence of special financing relationships, regardiess of whether the government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities.
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Discretely presented component units (continued)

Except for the Board of Education of St. Mary's County, the governing bodies of all these component units are appointed by The
County Commissioners for St. Mary's County.

Board of Education of St. Mary's County — In Maryland, public schools are part of a statewide system of county school boards.
The school boards’ political boundaries conform to the county boundaries. The purpose of the Board of Education of St.
Mary's County is to operate the local public school system in accordance with State and community standards. The school
system does not have the authority to levy any taxes or incur debt. Schools are funded with local, State and Federal monies.
St. Mary's County has oversight responsibility for approval and partial funding of the school system's operating budget.

St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission is responsible for providing water and wastewater facilities and services within the
jurisdiction of St. Mary's County, Marytand.

St. Mary's County Building Authority Commission was created by the Maryland General Assembly as an instrumentality of the
County to acquire titie to property within St. Mary's County for construction, renovation, or rehabilitation. The Building Authority
Commission currently owns and leases property to the State of Maryland and St. Mary's Nursing Center, Inc.

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County operates a main library in Leonardtown and branch libraries in Lexington Park
and Charlotte Hall.

Financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their respective administrative offices.

Board of Education of St. Mary's County
23160 Moakley Street
| .eonardtown, Maryland 20650

St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission
43990 Commerce Avenue
Hollywood, Maryland 20636

St. Mary's County Building Authority Commission
23115 Leonard Hall Drive

P.0. Box 653, Governmental Center
Leonardtown, Maryland 20650

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County
23250 Hollywood Road
Leonardtown, Maryland 20650
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Financial Statements

The financial statements of the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland, (the County) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units as prescribed by the
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accompanying financial statements include various agencies, department
organizations and offices which are iegally part of St. Mary's County (the Primary Government) and the County’s Component Units. As
defined in GASB Statement Number 14, component units are legally separate organizations for whom the County is financially
accountable or for which their relationship with the County is of such significance that exclusion would cause the County's financial
statements to be misleading. The decision to include a potential component unit in the financial reporting entity was made by applying
the criteria set forth in GASB Statement Number 14. These financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable,

The County's basic financial statements include government-wide financial statements (reporting on the County as a whole), fund
financial statements (reporting the County's most significant funds), and fiduciary financial statements ({reporting on the County's
pension funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or
business-type. Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. The County's public safety,
pubtic transportation, health and social services, some parks and recreation activities, public works and general administrative services
are classified as governmental activities. Business-type activities rely significantly on fees and charges for support. The County's
Recreation and Parks, Medical Adult Daycare and the Wicomico Golf Course are classified as business-type activities.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) report information on all of
the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units, The govemment-wide financial statements focus more
on the sustainability of the County as an entity and the change in the County's net assets resulting from the current year's activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities columns are (a) presented on a
consolidated basis by column, and (b) reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The County's net assets are reported
in three parts — (1) invested in capital assets, net of related debt: (2) restricted net assets; and (3) unrestricted net assets. Net assets
should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation. The net assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net
asset use. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are availabie for use, the County utilizes restricted resources to finance
qualifying activities first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary’s County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government-wide Statements (continued)

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the County's functions and business-type
activities. The functions are also supported by general government revenues {property tax, income tax, certain intergovernmental
revenues, fines, permits, and charges, etc ). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related
program revenues, operating grants and capital grants. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and (2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Program revenues must be directly
associated with the function or a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating
or capital) grants while the capital grants column refiects capital-specific grants. The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are
normally covered by general revenues (property tax, income tax, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.) which are properly
not included among program revenues. The County has an indirect cost allocation plan which it uses {when applicable and allowed) to
charge costs to special revenue (grant) programs. Indirect costs are not normally charged fo general government activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Ccunty are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-baiancing accounts that comprises its assets, fiabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and
expenditures/expenses.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the maijor funds in either the govemmental or business-type activities categories.
GASB 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of either fund category
or the governmental and enterprise funds combined) for the determination of major funds. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. No major funds by category are
summarized into a single column.

Governmental Funds

The measurement focus of the govermental fund financial statements is upon determination of financial position and changes in
financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the
governmental funds of the County.

1. General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is considered a major fund.

2. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes. The Special Revenue Funds of the County are non-major funds.

3. Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major
capital facilities {other than those financed by business-type/proprietary funds). The Capital Projects Fund is a major
fund.
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and
cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are similar fo those applicable to businesses in the private sector.

Proprietary (Enterprise) Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to external users for goods
or services and the activity (a} is firanced with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net revenues, (b) has third party requirements
that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges, or (c) establishes fees and charges

based on a pricing policy designed to cover similar costs.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not available to support
County programs. The reporting focus for fiduciary funds is on net assets and changes in net assets and accounting principles used

are similar to proprietary funds.

The County's pension trust fund accounts for the retirement benefits for the St. Mary's County Maryland Sheriffs Office Retirement
Plan. Since, by definition, these assets are held for the benefit of a third party (pension participants) and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the govemment, these funds are nat incorporated into the government-wide statements. They are presented

in the fiduciary fund financial statements.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the
financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied. The
measurement focus identifies which transactions should be recorded.

Basis of Accounting

a. Accrual Basis - Both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting
in the govemment-wide financial statements and the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as ali eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met. '




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of Accounting (continued)

b. Modified Accrual Basis — The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual: i.e.,
both measurable and available. “Measurable” means knowing or able to reasonably estimate the amount. “Available’
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose, the County considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Al other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the County.
Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related liability is incurred. However, debt service
expenditures (principal and interest), as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and

judgments, are recorded only when due.

Measurement Focus

In the government-wide financial statements, both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic
resources measurement focus as defined in item {b.) below.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic resources”
measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. Ali governmental funds utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial assets and
liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. The fund financial statements present sources and uses of
available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of

available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary funds utiize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are

reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.

Accounting policies

The financial statements of The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the United States of America as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local govemments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
Although the County has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise
funds, the County has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in the GAAP and used by the County

are discussed below.
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financiat Statements
June 30, 2006

1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting palicies (continued)

Fund accounting

The County uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate
legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to certain government functions or activities. A
fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Funds are classified into three categories: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary. Each category, in turn, is divided into separate fund types,

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general activities, including the collection and disbursement
of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects funds), and the
servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The general fund is used to account for all activities of the general government
not accounted for in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is
necessary or useful to sound financial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided either to outside parties
(enterprise funds) or to other departments or agencies primarily within the government (intemal service funds).

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other
funds within the government. When these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, either a pension trust fund, a
nonexpendable trust fund or an expendable trust fund is used. The terms “nonexpendable” and “expendable” refer to whether or not
the government is under an obligation to maintain the trust principal. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the
government holds on behalf of others as their agent.

The amount of grant funds passed through the County to Walden Sierra, Inc., Three Oaks Homeless Shelter, So. MD. Tri-County
Community Action Committee and St. Mary's County Housing Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 totaled $2,902,495.
These pass-through grants are recorded as pass-through revenue in the amount of $2,902,547 and expenditures in the amount of
$2,902,495 on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.

Budget and budgetary accounting

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted {GAAPY) in the United States of America. All
annual operating appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project-length financial plans are adopted for the capital projects fund. The
County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

a. Prior to April 1 of each year, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County shall have prepared a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.

C. The budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by June 1.
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1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Budget and budgetary accounting (continued)

d.

Encumbrances

Alt revisions that alter the expenditures of each fund must be approved by The County Commissioners for St. Mary's
County or the Chief Financial Officer.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the general fund,
special assessment fund and enterprise funds.

Budgets for the special revenue funds and the capital projects fund are adopted on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the United States of America. The budget for the general fund is
adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the United States of America,
except that appropriations of fund balance are treated as other financing sources. Budget comparisons presented for
the general fund in this report are on a non-GAAP basis, The capital projects funds’ budgets are prepared on a
project-length basis, and accordingly, annual budgetary comparisons are not presented in the financial statements.
The enterprise funds' budgets are flexible annuaf operating budgets. Budgetary comparisons are not presented in the
financial statements for the enterprise funds.

The budgeted amounts are as adopted, including amendments, by The County Commissioners for St. Mary's
County.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which
purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the
applicable appropriation, is utilized in the governmental funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of
fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments

Cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of
the date acquired. State statutes authorize investments in obligations of the United States government, federal government agency
obligations and repurchase agreements. Investments are stated at cost.

The operating cash balances for all funds are commingled and shown in the governmental activities on the statement of net assets and
in the general fund on the governmental fund balance sheet.

Investments in the Pension Trust Fund of the Sheriff's Department Retirement Plan are carried at fair value as determined on June 30
of each year, based on appraisals or quotations by an independent investment counselor offset by a fund balance reservation, which

indicates that they do not constitute available spendable resources even though they are a component of net current assets.
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1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventory and prepaid expenditures

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory in the general fund, special revenue funds and enterprise
funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. Reported inventories and prepaid expenditures in the general fund are
offset by a fund balance reservation, which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable resources even though they are a

component of net current assets,

Long-term receivables

Noncurrent portions of long-term receivables are reported on the balance sheet in spite of their spending measurement focus. The
long-term portion of receivables is offset by a fund balance reservation, which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable
resources even though they are a component of net current assets.

Accumulated unpaid annual leave

Full-time employees can earn annual leave at a rate of from ten days per year (one through five years of service) up to a maximum of
twenty-five days per year (if over twenty years of service). Leave for permanent part-time employees is prorated according fo the
number of hours worked.

There are no requirements that annual leave be taken; however, the maximum permissible accumulation to be carried into the new
calendar year is forty-five days for full-time employees and twenty-two and one-half days for permanent part-time empioyees. At
termination, employees are paid for any accumulated annual leave.

Full-time and permanent part-time employees earn sick leave based upon the number of hours worked, with a maximum of fifteen days
earned per year. There is no fimit to the accumulation of sick leave. At termination, employees are not paid for accumulated sick leave,
nor is credit provided for employees that retire on early retirements. However, at regular retirement, employees who have been
employed by the County for five years are eligible to receive service credit at a rate of one month for every twenty days of unused sick
leave. Persons that are reinstated in the County service within one year from the time of their separation shall receive full credit for ali
sick leave accumulated at time of separation.

Full-time employees are entitled to compensatory time off for work performed in excess of the normal work period, Compensatory leave
should be used within a reasonable period: however, the maximum permissible accumulation to be caried into the new calendar year
§ 240 hours for non-law enforcement employees and 480 hours for law enforcement employees and correctional officers. At
termination, employees are paid for any accumulated compensatory leave at the higher rate of the average regular rate received by the
employee during the last three years or the final reqular rate received by such employee.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Budget basis of accounting

Actual results of operations are presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, Encumbrances, and Other Financing Sources
and Uses - Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - General Fund, in order to provide a meaningful comparison of actual results with
budget estimates. Under the budget basis, encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures, as opposed to only a
reservation of fund balance as on a GAAP basis.

A reconciliation of the revenues and expenditures of the general fund from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is as follows:

Net Change in Fund End of Year Fund
Balance Balance
Budgetary Basis - General Fund $10,862,081 $44,761,476
Minor revolving funds and general financing that relate to
activities resuiting from fees, fines, and other revenue sources
that are not an element of the budget basis reporting 597,984 338,777
Beginning of year encumbrances, rolled into FY2006 (1,009,160) 0
Appropriation from prior year rolled to FY2006 in order to
cover the encumbrances. This is reflected in the revised
budget appropriations for FY2006 1,009,160 1,009,160
End of year encumbrances included in budget basis
expenditures, not included for GAAP
171,871 171,871
GAAP Basis
$11,631,936 46,281,284

Basis of presentation

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the County as a whole. These statements include
the financial activities of the primary government, except for fiduciary funds. These statements distinguish between those activities of
the County that are governmentai and those that are considered business-type activities.
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1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Capital assets

Ali capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Contributed capital
assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date contributed.

With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34, the County has recorded its public domain {infrastructure) capital assets, which
include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems, etc.

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all uses over the lives of these assets. The amount
charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's prorata share of capital assets.

The method of depreciation being used for all governmentak-type assets placed in service as a result of GASB Statement No. 34 is the
straight-line half-year convention. Only assets greater than or equal to $5,000 will be depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government and the component units are depreciated using the straight-line method (half-
year convention} over the following estimated useful lives:

Primary Government

Buildings and improvements 50 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Vehicles licensed 5- 8 years
Off-road vehicles 5-10 years
Miscellaneous equipment 5-10 years
Other infrastructure 10-50 years

Component Units

St. Mary's County Public Schools

Buildings and improvements 20-50 years
Furniture and equipment 3-15 years
Property under financing agreements 5-50 years

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County

Furnishings and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Bocks 7 years
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1. Reporting entity and summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Capital assets {continued)
Component Units (continued)

St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission

Utility plants 18-50 years
Water plant systems 18-50 years
Equipment 3-10 years
Capitalized interest 50 years
Buildings 25 years

St. Mary's County Building Authority Commission

Buildings 40 years
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market. The inventories are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased. Governmental fund-type inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that
they do not constitute “available spendable resources,” even though they are a component of net current assets.

Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities and business-type activities statement of net assets,
or proprietary fund type balance sheet. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance cost, are deferred and amortized over the

iife of the bond.

2. Deficit fund eguity

Noen-major governmental funds - The deficits in the non-major governmental funds arise primarily because of the application of
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to the financial reporting of such funds. Special assessments
are recognized as revenue only to the extent that individual installments are considered current assets. Expenditures, however, are
recognized at the time liabilities are incurred. The deficit will be reduced and eliminated as deferred assessment installments are

assessed and collected.

Proprietary funds — The deficit in the Medical Adult Daycare Fund was principally reduced in FY 2006 by a budget transfer from the
general fund of $589,007. Continued focus on this activity is expected in order to determine whether it can function as a self-supporting

fund or to consider alternatives for services or funding.
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3. Cash, cash equivalents and investments

Primary Government

The County has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, and shortterm securities and
certificates of deposit with an originat maturity of three months or fess.

Investments held by the County, including the pension funds, are stated at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices at
year end or best available estimate. Al investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost or amortized cost.

Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland states that local governments are authorized to invest in the instruments
specified in the State Finance and Procurement Article, Section 6-222 of the Code. In addition, Article 95, Section 22 requires that
local government deposits with financial institutions be fully collateralized and that the collateral be of types specified in the State
Finance and Procurement Article, Section 6-202. The County is charged with the responsibility for selecting depositories and investing
the idle funds as directed by the State and County Codes. The County is further restricted as to the types of deposits and investments
in accordance with the County's investment policy. Depository institutions must be Maryland banks and must be approved for use by
the County Commissioners.

Cash Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits was $43,416,507 and the collected bank balance was $44,400,635. Of the
collected bank balance, $215,859 was covered by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), and $44,184,776 was covered by
collateral held either in the pledging bank’s trust department or by the pledging bank’s agent.

Investments -

Statutes authorize the County to invest in short-term United States government securities or repurchase agreements fully secured by
the United States government if the funds are not needed for immediate disbursement. The stated maturities of the investments may
not exceed 270 days. Statutes also authorize the County to invest in the Local Government Investment Pool established by state law.
Investments are subject to approval of the County Commissioners as to the amount available for investment and the acceptable
securities or financial institutions used.
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3. Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

Primary Government (continued)

Investments (continued)

At year end, the County's investment balances were as follows:

Investment Type Fair Value
U.S. government securities - Treasuries $43,416,508
Maryland Local Government Investment Pool 37,747 462
Pension investments — Sheriff s Office Retirement Plan
Cash and equivalents
Cash 211,615
Temporary investments 1,788,410
Fixed income
U.S. government and agencies 10,542,766
Mortgage-backed pass-throughs 728,703
Equities
Corporate bonds - convertible 381,984
Common stocks 8,043,809
Closed-end fund - equity 2908568
Subiotal - Sheriff's Office Retirement Plan 24,605,855
Debt service sinking fund {St. Mary's Hospital) 454,763

Total investments

106,224

Investments in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP) are not evidenced by securities. The investment pool, not
the participating governments, faces the custodial credit risk. The State Treasurer of Maryland exercises oversight responsibiity over
the MLGIP. A single financial institution is contracted to operate the Pool. In addition, the State Treastrer has established an advisory
board composed of Pool participants to review the activities of the contractor quarterly and provide suggestions to enhance the return
on investments.

The MLGIP uses the amortized cost method to compute unit value rather than market value to report net assets. Accordingly, the fair
value of the position in the MLGIP is the same as the value of the MLGIP shares.

None of the County's investments are subject fo concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk or foreign currency risk.
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3. Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

Investments (continued)

Component Units
St. Mary’s County Public Schools

Investments

Maryland State Law authorizes the School System to invest in obligations of the United States government, federal government
obligations and repurchase agreements secured by direct government or agency obligations, or the State's sponsored investment pool.

At June 30, 2006, short-term investments consist primarily of deposits in the MLGIP. The MLGIP is rated "AAAm™ by Standard and
Poor's (their highest rating). The carrying amount and market value were $13,510,517, $361,643, and $359,105 for governmental
activities, business-type activities, and fiduciary responsibilities, respectively.

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County

Cash deposits and investments

Statutes authorize secured time deposits in Maryland banks and require uninsured deposits to be fully collateralized.

At June 30, 2006, the carrying amount of the Library's deposits was $7,956, and the bank balances totaled $7,606. Of the bank
balances, $7,606 was covered by federal deposit insurance.

Investments in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool (MLGIP), an extemal investment pool, are not evidenced by
securities. The investment pool, not the participating govemments, faces the custodiat credit risk.

The Vanguard Group investment is an investment in an open-end mutual fund and is therefore not subject to custodial credit risk.

Carrying Market
Amount Value
Unrestricted:
Investment in Maryland Local Govemment § 41934 $ 41931
investment Pool
Restricted:
The Vanguard Group $ 68,500 $ 68500
Mercantile Southern Maryland Bank —
Savings account 2,074 2074
Board - restricted fund $ 70,574 $ 70574
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3. Cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

Component Units {continued)
Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County {continued)

None of the Library’s investments are subject to concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk or foreign currency risk.

Statutes authorize the Library to invest in obligations of the United States government, federal government agency obligations,
repurchase agreements secured by direct government or agency obligations, certificates of deposit, banks' acceptances, commercial

paper, pooted investments and municipal bonds and municipal mutual funds.

St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission

Deposits and investments

Deposits

The carrying amount of MetCom's deposits was $750,116 at June 30, 2006, and the bank balances were $1,071,878. Of the bank
balances, $100,000 was covered by federal depository insurance at June 30, 2006, with the remaining $971,878 adequately covered
by collateral. State statutes authorize secured time deposits in Maryland banks and require uninsured deposits to be fully

collateralized.

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following:

Investments $3,485,722
Cash 750,116
Petty cash 150
$4,035,988
fnvestments

State statutes authorize MetCom to invest in obligations of the United States government, federal government agency obligations, and
repurchase agreements secured by direct govemment or agency obligations. All of the funds were invested in the Maryland Local
Government Investment Poot (MLGIP) which qualifies under the statutes. The MLGIP is rated "AAAm" by Standard and Poor's (their

highest rating).

Investments in the Maryland Local Government Investment Pool, an external investment pool, are not evidenced by securities. The
investment pool, not the participating governments, faces the custodial credit risk.

None of MetCom's investments are subject to concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk or foreign currency risk.

Carrying Amount Market Value

MLGIP $ 3,485,722 $3.485722
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4. Changes in capital assets
Primary Government
A summary of changes in capital assets is as foliows:
Balance Batance
Prior Period
Adjustment Disposals &
Jung 30, 2005 Addltions {Nole 18} Translers June 30, 2006
Governmenlal Activiies
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land §18,830,327 $573,000 50 30 $19.403 327
Solid Waste Facilties 10,663,660 76,186 0 ¢ 10,739,846
Construction In Progress | 2504611 775,827 0 0 3,280 438
Buildings & improvements 17,320,205 3,689,650 (14,852) (20,995,003} 0
Computer equipment 2,371,397 0 (2,371,347) 0 0
Furriture & equipment 381,191 0 {381,191 0 0
Vehicles - licensed 30,568 0 (30,568) 0 0
Off-road vehicles 46,315 ¢ {46,315) 0 0
Miscellaneous equipment 1,772,823 0 (1,772.823) 0 ]
Roads 1,085 0 {1,095) 0 0
Airport equipment 1,044 0 {1,844} 0 ¢
Bridges 71.246 0 (71,248) 0 0
Parks & recreation 17.072 0 {17,072) ] 0
Parking lots 2219 0 (2.219) 0 0
211 system & equipment 1423733 0 0 0 1423733
Total capitai assels not being depreciated $55,438,306 $5,114 663 ($4,710,622) ($20,985,003) $34,847 344
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements $80,663,817 $6,371,227 §0 ($3,689,650) $83,365%,394
Computer equipment 1,549,032 264,506 0 0 1,813,538
Furniture & equipment 171,145 23623 0 0 144,768
Vehicles - licensed 9 196,863 884,760 ¢ {365,570} 9,718,073
Off-road vehicles 1,792,856 609,015 0 (180 384} 2221487
Miscellaneous equipment 1,981,586 6,578 0 0 1,998,564
Roads 52,703,789 12,057,580 0 0 104,161,369
Curbing 946 791 0 0 ¢ 946,791
Sidewalks 652,520 224,648 0 0 917 168
Guardrails 705,264 527175 0 0 758,035
Airport infrastructure 4,457 532 ¥ Iy 0 4,457 532
Airport equipment 514,808 0 0 o 514,808
Baseball fields 707,680 1] 0 0 707,680
Bridges 4,928,166 6,625 0 0 4,934 791
Parks & recreation 9,986 850 0 0 0 9 589,650
Marinas & docks 7,559,540 0 0 0 7,559,540
Irrigaticn systems 179,714 0 0 0 179,714
Signage 475433 0 0 0 475,433
Parking lots 105,047 0 0 0 105,047
911 system & equipment 7.354 466 311,655 0 0 7,666,421
Totai capilai assels being depreciated $226,107 899 $20,813,712 $0 (84,235,604)  $242 686,007
Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improverments (526,705,743} ($1.372,055) 50 30 {$28 077,798)
Computer equipment {1,286,508) (84,924} 0 0 {1,371,430)
Furniture & equipment {41,447 {10.468) 0 0 (51,915)
Vehicles - licensed {7,272,542) (497 987) 0 283,794 (7,486,735}
Off-road venicles (916,380) (203,198) 0 108,231 {1,011,347)
Miscellanecus eguipment (912,269) (187.046) 0 0 (1,099,315)
Roads (40,572,380) (2,811,317 0 0 (43,383,657
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4. Changes in capital assels (continued)

Primary Government {continued)

Balance Balance
Prior Period
Adjustment Disposals &
June 30, 2005 Additions {Note 18) Transfers June 3G, 2006
Accumulated depreciation for: {continued)
Curbing {$508,174) ($25,621) $0 $0 1$533,795)
Sidewalks (302,608) 18,724) 0 0 (321,332)
Guardrails {296,634} {16,362} g 0 (312,956)
Airport infrastructure {3,573,248) {318,281) 0 0 {3,891 529)
Airport equipment 1420,427) (35,812) 0 0 (456,239)
Baseball fields {300,818 (14,025) 0 0 (314,841
Bridges {(1,643,771) {99,169) 0 0 {1,742,940)
Parks & recreation (953,724) {318,068) {0 0 [1.271,792)
Marinas & docks {2,500,531) (242 613) 0 0 [2.743,144)
irrigation systems (86,453) 3,716) 0 0 {90,169)
Signage {312,945) (14,420) 0 i (327,365)
Parking lots (105,047) 0 0 0 (105,047}
911 equipmen! (1,040,809} (396,866) 0 0 {1,437 675)
Total accumulated depreciation 1$89,752 454) ($6,670,672) §0 $352,025  ($96,031,101)
Total capital assets being depreciated. net $136,355,445 $14,143,040 $0 ($3,843,579)  $146 654 906
Governmental activities capital assets, net $191,793.754 $19,257.703 ($4,710,622) {$24 838,582}  $181.502,250

Business-type Aclivities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $1.078.666 $0 30 $0 $1,078,666
Off-road vehicles 225477 0 {225477) 0 0
Buildings & improvements 2492 0 (2,482) 0 0
Computer equipment 1138 0 {1,139) 0 0
Miscellaneous equipment 3,900 0 (3,500) 0 0
Total capilal assets not being deprecialed $1.311674 $0 {$233,008) $0 $1,078 666
Capital assels being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements $1,707 974 30 $0 $6 $1,707,974
Computer equipment 46,827 4 0 0 46,827
Furniture & equipment 39,359 0 [ 0 39,359
Vehicies - Licensed 0 13777 0 4] 13,777
Off-road vehicles 159,492 21,150 0 0 180,642
Miscellaneous equipment 352,106 0 0 o 352,106
Irrigation systems 509,966 ¢ 0 0 509,986
Total capital assets being depreciated $2,815,744 $34,927 $0 30 $2.850,671
Accumulated deprecialion for:
Buildings & improvements {$922,345) (340,393) 50 $0 ($962,738)
Computer equipment {46,171} (148) o 0 (46.319)
Furniture & equipment (36.802) (307} 0 0 (37,109
Vehicles - Licensed 0 (13777) 0 0 (13,777)
O#-road vehicles (68,331) {30,173) 0 0 {98,504}
Miscellanecus equipment (310,898) {9.469) 0 0 {320,367}
frrigation systems (178,740) {16,693} 0 0 {195,433)
Total accumulated depreciation ($1.563,287) ($110,950) $0 $0 ($1.674,247)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net $1,252,457 (376,033} §0 $0 $1,176.424
Business-type activities capital assets, net $2,564,131 ($76,033) ($233,008) $0 $2,255,090
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4. Changes in capital assets (continued)

Primary Govemment (continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities

General Government $838,648
Public Safety 989,623
Public Works 4,024,523
Social Services 104,672
Primary and Secondary Education 40,039
Post -Secondary Education 42,285
Parks, Recreation, and Culture 442109
Libraries - 183,740
Economic Development and Opportunity 5,033
Total Depreciation - Governmental Activities $6,670,672

Business-Type Activities

Recreation Activity Fund $3,199
Wicomico 83,984
Total Depreciation - Business-Type Activities $97.183
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4. Changes in capital assets (continued)

Component Units
St. Mary's County Public Schools

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2005 Additions Deletions Jure 30, 2006
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 761,983 $ 1,168,185 $ (5025 §1,925143
Land under financing agreement 620,149 0 0 620,149
Facilities under construction 42,807 544 17,397,705 (22,941,425) 37,263,824
44,189,676 18,565,890 (22,946 ,450) 39,809,116
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 207,153,898 23,050,648 (2,104,964) 228,099,582
Furniture and equipment 3,671,952 718,539 {(114,242) 4,276,249
Facilities and equipment
under financing agreements 5,720,939 227 310 (179,503) 5,768,746
216,546,789 23,996.497 (2,398,709) 238,144,577

Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements,
including facilities under
capital lease (64,004,627) (4,862,183) 1,382,119 (67,484,691)
Furniture and equipment,
including equipment under
financing agreements {2,127.006) (442 373) 73,909 (2,495 470)

(66,131,633) {5,304.556) 1,456,028 (69,980,161}

Governmental activities capital
assels, net 4 7,257 831 2 13 73,532

Business-type activities
Capital assets being depreciated:
Furniture and equipment § 1197842 $ 7,449 $ 0§ 1205291

Accumulated depreciation for:

Furniture and equipment (386,784) (82,815} 0 (469,599)

Business-type activities capital

assets, net $ 811058 $ (75366) $ Q $ 735692
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4. Changes in capital assets (continued)

Component Units (continued)
St. Mary's County Pubiic Schools (continued)

Capital Assets {confinued)

Depreciation expense was charged in the Statement of Activities for the year ended June 30, 2006, as follows:

Governmental activities:

Administration $ 31,058
Mid-Level Administration 22,629
Other Instructional Costs 118,780
Special Education 12,220
Student Personnel Services 5,503
Student Transportation Services 122,834
Operation of Plant 4,987,286
Maintenance of Plant 4,246

Total governmental activities depreciation expense $ 5,304,556

Business-type activities:

Food Services § 82815

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County

Capital assets and depreciation

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2005 Additions Deletions June 30, 2006
Capital assets:
Furnishings and
Equipment $ 836,788 § 62401 $ (7.340) $ 891,849
Vehicles 17,199 15,903 0 33,102
Books 2188514 266,765 {230,357) 2,224 922
$ 3,042 501 $ 345069 $ {237,697 $.3.149.873
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4. Changes in capital assets (continued)

Component Units (continued)

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County (continued)

Capital assets and depreciation {continued)

Balance Balance
July 1. 2005 Additions Deletions  Jupe 30, 2006
Accumulated depreciation:
Furnishings and Equipment § 460,566 $ 142,114 $ (7,340) $ 595,340
Vehicles 12,040 5030 0 17,070
Books 1,239,408 285,300 {(230.357) 1,294,351
1,712,014 432 444 (237.697) 1,906,761
Net capital assets $1,330.487 $.(87.375) $ 0 1,243.11
Governmental activities depreciation expense of $432,444 was charged to Library services.
St. Mary's County Building Authority Commission
Capital assets
Capital assets at June 30, 2006 consisted of the following:
Balance Balance
Capital assets: July 1, 2005 Additions June 30 2006
Nursing Home building $ 8,846,238 $ 0 $ 8,846,238
State Office building 8,673,157 0 8673157
Furniture and equipment 13,387 0 13,387
$17,532782 $ 0 $ 17532782
Accumulated depreciation:
Nursing Home building 3,407,292 221,156 3,628,448
State Office building 3,330,475 216,829 3,547,304
Furniture and equipment 13,387 0 13,387
$ 6,751,154 $437.985 $ 7.189.139
Net capital assets 10.781.62 $437,985 $10,343.643

Depreciation expense of $437,985 was charged to activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. There were no additions or
deletions of capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.
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4. Changes in capital assets (continued)

St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission

Capital assets and depreciation

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2005 Additions Deletions June 30, 2006
Capital assets:
Utility plants $65,498,023 $1,556,936 $ 0 $67,054,959
Water plant systems 11,920,146 425,979 0 12,346,125
Equipment 4,158,919 567,653 207,444 4519128
Capitalized interest 818,201 0 ] 818,201
Buiidings 14437%7 0 0 1443737
Subtotal 83,839,026 2,550,568 207 444 86,182,150
Not being depreciated:
Utility plant construction
in process 6,325,118 1,846,602 19,396 8,152,324
Water plant construction
in process 935,899 768,826 288,558 1,416,167
Landfland rights 526,337 39,800 0 566,137
91,626,380 5,205,796 515,398 96,316,778
Accumulated depreciation:
Utility pfants 21,272,592 1,348,384 0 22,620,976
Water plant systems 3,616,696 269,472 0 3,886,168
Equipment 2,526,168 286,408 207 444 2,605,132
Capitalized interest 171,822 16,364 0 188,186
Buildings 447 263 54,487 0 501,750
: 28,034 541 1,975,115 207.444 29,802,212
Net capital assets $63.591.839 $3,230.681 $ 307954 $66,514 566
Depreciation expense of $1,975,115 was charged to activities as follows:
Sewer activities $1,771,530
Water activities 107,190
Engineering activities 34,185
Administrative 62,210
Total $1,975115
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5. Property tax

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1. Taxes are levied each July 1, and the taxpayer has the option to
pay in full without interest by September 30 or elect a semiannual payment option. If a semiannual payment option is elected, the first
payment is payable without interest by September 30 and the second payment, including a service charge, is payable without interest
by December 31. Interest is charged for each month or fraction thereof that taxes remain unpaid beginning October 1 on accounts
under the annual payment option or January 1 for accounts under the semiannual payment option. Maryland law grants the Treasurer
of St. Mary's County the power to immediately advertise and sell any real property after the taxes are delinguent for a period of one
year. Property taxes are levied at rates enacted by the Commissioners in the annual budget based on the assessed value of the
property as determined by the Maryland State Depariment of Assessments and Taxation, an agency of the government of the State of
Maryland. The rates of levy cannot exceed the constant yield tax rate furnished by the Maryland State Department of Assessments and
Taxation without public notice and, then only after public hearings. The real property tax rate during the year ended June 30, 2006, was
$.872 per $100 of assessed value based on the full valuation method. The personal property tax rate during the year ended June 30,
2006 was $2.18 per $100 of assessed value. The County bills and collects all property taxes.

A 100% allowance for uncollectibles is established for prior year (fiscal year 2004 and prior) taxes receivable, County property tax
receivable as of June 30, 2006, net of the allowance for uncollectibles of $326,375, is $1,332,888 (this amount does not include state
and emergency services laxes receivable). On October 1, a 3% penalty is assessed, and interest begins accruing at a rate of 1% for
each month that real and personal property taxes are delinquent (unless taxpayer has elected semiannual payment option as
described above).

6. Special tax assessment receivable and deferred revenue

Primary Govemnment

The special assessment receivable is composed of various special assessments levied by the County for completed projects funded by
the County. The cost of the completed projects is billed to taxpayers over periods from 10 to 25 years and reported as a special
assessment receivable and deferred revenue. In accordance with the modified accrual method of accounting, in subsequent periods,
when revenue recognition criteria are met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the fiability for the deferred
revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. The non-current portion of the receivable is offset by a fund
balance reserve account, which indicates that this does not constitute available resources since this is not a component of net current
assets. The current portion of the special assessment receivable is considered available spendable resources.

As of June 30, 2006, there were no delinquent special assessment receivables due from taxpayers.

Comgoneﬁt Units
St. Mary's County Public Schools

(General Fund

Deferred revenue consists primarily of the retrospective insurance premium refund and workers compensation insurance dividend
totaling $811,474 which will be collected subsequent to June 30, 2008, but is not available soon enough to pay for the current period's
expenditures, and therefore is deferred. The remaining deferred revenue consists of revenues received under restricted programs in
excess of the expenditures under those programs at June 30, 2006, and summer school tuition which is collected in advance of the
corresponding expenditures which do not oceur untif the following fiscal year.
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6. Special assessment receivable and deferred revenue (continued)

Gomponent Units (continued)
St. Mary’s County Public Schools (continued)

Enterprise Fund

Deferred revenue consists of commodities in the amount of $52,959, donated by the Federal government and included in inventory at
June 30, 2006. The remaining deferred revenue represents student funch ticket saies collected in advance for lunches which will be

consumed by students in fiscal year 2007.

50




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

7. Long-term obigations

Primary Government

Principal Amounts due
June 30, 2005 Additicns Oeductions Repayment June 30, 2008 within one year

General Obligation Bonds - County $113,135,000 $0 $0 {$7,675,000) $105,460,000 §7,745,600
Water Quality Loans 5,934,960 735110 0 (494,150) 6,175,920 502,266
State Loans 702,241 242 895 il {85,008) 860,128 95,085
Surplus Property Transfer of Debt 0 368,769 0 0 368,769 83.864
Exernpt Financing 1,174 547 1679638 ] {486,168} 2,368,079 799,438
120,946,748 3,026,472 0 (8,740,324) 115,232,896 5,225,653

General Obligation Bonds, sold on behalf of
St Mary's Hospital 23,630,000 0 0 {2,795,000) 20,835,000 1,295,000
Landfill Post-Closure Costs 2,950,000 0 {250,000 0 2,700,000 0
Compensated Absences (long-term) 3040533 171,508 0 0 3,212,042 3,805
5,990,533 171.509 [250,000) 0 5,912,042 3,895
Total £150 567,281 $3,197,981 {$250,000) ($11,535,324) $141579 938 $10,524,548
Less: Amount Deferred on Refunding (1,807,220) 24,601 0 [y {1,783.219} {11,5586)
Amourt Reported in Statement of Net Assets $148,760,051 $3,221 982 ($250,000) {$11,535,324) $140,195,719 $10512,992

Business-Type Aclivilies

Exempt Financing $125,225 30 $C (335,000} $90.225 $35.000
Compensated Absences (Long-Term) 98 227 4,960 o 0 103,187 0
Amcunt Reported in Statement of Net Assets $223,452 $4 960 $0 ($35,000) $193,412 $35.000
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Primary Govermnment (continued)

General obligation bonds

The County issues General Obligation Bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. General
Obligation Bonds have been issued for both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds, therefore, are reported in the
proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary revenue. In addition, General Obligation Bonds have been issued to
refund both General Obligation and Revenue Bonds. General Obligation Bonds are direct obligations of the County and pledge the full

faith and credit of the government.

On July 15, 2001, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County issued Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds in the amount of
$25,000,000. The bonds bear interest at rates of 4-5.50% per annum, payable January 1 and July 1, beginning January 1, 2002.
Principal payments of varying amounts are payable July 1, commencing July 1, 2002.

On January 15, 2002, the County issued General Obligation Bonds ($20,755,000 Consolidated Public Improvement Refunding Bonds
and $20,000,000 General Obligation Hospital Bonds). The Hospital Bonds were issued to fund a loan by the County to St. Mary's
Hospital of St. Mary's County (the "Hospital’). The Hospital will apply the proceeds of such loan to fund capital improvements to its
facility in Leonardtown, MD, including the construction of approximately 67,000 square feet of new space, the renovation of
approximately 40,000 square feet of existing space, and site and infrastructure improvements. The Refunding Bonds will mature on
October 1, in 17 annual serial instaliments, beginning in the year 2003 and ending with the year 2019. interest on the Bonds is payable
semiannually on each April 1 and October 1 fo maturity with an average interest rate of 4.17% (Hospital Bonds of 2003) and 3.86%
{Refunding Bonds of 2003).

The Refunding Bonds were issued to currently refund all outstanding maturities of the County's Public Facilities Bonds of 1988, and to
advance refund the callable maturities of the County's Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds of 1999 {collectively, the "Refunded
Bonds"), provided however, that the County reserves the right not to refund some or all of the maturities of the Refunded Bonds if
appropriate levels of savings cannot be achieved.

The proceeds of the Refunding Bonds wili be applied to the purchase of non-caliable direct obligations of the United States of America
("Government Obligations”) and used to pay certain expenses of the County related to the issuance and disposition of the proceeds of
the Refunding Bonds.

On August 15, 2003, the County issued Public Facilities and Refunding Bonds of 2003 in the principal amount of $33,985,000. The
bonds mature on November 1, in twenty annual installments, beginning in 2004 and ending in 2023. Interest rates on the bonds range
from 2.75% to 4.75%, with a true interest cost of approximately 3.99%. Interest is payable on May 1, 2004 and semiannually thereafter
on each May 1 and November 1 to maturity.

The bonds may be prepaid at the following premiums:

Period Price
November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014 101%
November 1, 2014 through October 31, 2015 100-1/2 %
After November 1, 2015 100%
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7. Long-term obligations (continued}

Primary Government (continued)

General obligation bonds (continued)

The County Bonds are being issued to (1) pay a portion of the costs of financing certain capital projects of the County, (2) currently
refund all outstanding maturities of the County's Public Facilities Bonds of 1991 and Public Faciliies Bonds of 1993 (collectively, the
“Currently Refunded County Bonds"), {3) advance refund the callable maturities only of the County's Public Facilities Bonds of 1995
(the “Advance Refunded County Bonds” and, together with the Currently Refunded County Bonds, the “Refunded County Bonds"), and

(4) pay costs of issuance.

On March 8, 2005, the County issued General Obligation Bonds ($16,260,000 Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds). The
Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds will mature on March 1, in 20 annual serial instaliments, beginning in the year 2006 and
ending with the year 2025. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on each March 1 and September 1 to maturity with an

average interest rate of 3.80%.

The County has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued and the
proceeds have been used to purchase United States govemment securities that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and
fixed earnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For financial
reporting purposes, the debt has been considered defeased and therefore removed as a liability from the County's government-wide
financial statements. As of June 30, 2006, the amount of debt outstanding removed from long-term debt amounted to $18,495,000.

2001 Maryland Water Quality Loan

On September 29, 2000, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with the Maryland Water Quality
Financing Administration to borrow an amount not to exceed $3,338,383 for landfill post-closure costs, St. Andrews Landfill area B,
cells 1, 2 and 4. The final loan amount has been determined and a new amortization schedule has been formally placed in effect. The
loan bears interest at a rate of 2.4% per annum payable semiannually. Principal payments are due annually starting February 1, 2002,
The annual requirements to amortize the Maryland Water Quality Loan as of June 30, 2006, based on the final loan amount of

$3,225,318, are as follows:

2001 Maryland Water Quality L.oan

Year ending June 30, Amount
2007 $ 277,689
2008 : 277,689
2008 277,689
2010 277,689
2011 277,689
2012-2016 1,275379
$2,663.824
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Primary Government (continued)

2001 Maryland Water Quality Loan (continued)

The totals are composed of principal, interest and administrative fees as follows:

Principal $2,241,574
interest 294,724
Administrative fees 127 526

$2,663.824

2004 Maryland Water Quality Loan

On May 26, 2004, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with the Maryland Water Quality
Financing Administration to borrow an amount not to exceed $4,332,759 for landfill post-closure costs, St. Andrews Landfill area B,
cells 3 and 5. As of June 30, 2008, the amount drawn on the loan was $4,222,307. The loan bears an interest rate of 1.10% per
annum, payable semiannually. An initial principal payment of $1,000 is due August 1, 2005. Subsequent principal payments are due
annually beginning February 1, 2006. Once the final loan amount has been determined, a new amortization schedule will be formally
placed in effect. The annual requirements to amortize the Maryland Water Quality Loan as of June 30, 2006, are as foliows:

Year ending June 30, Amount
2007 $ 347,949
2008 _ 345,853
2009 : 345,853
2010 345,853
2011 345,853
2012-2016 1,729,265
2017-2019 927107
$4,387,733
The totals are composed of principal, interest and administrative fees as follows:
Principal $3,934,347
Interest : 304,563
Administrative fees 148 823
$4,387,733
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Primary Government (continued)

2004 Exempt Financing — Equipment Lease

On December 23, 2003, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with SunTrust Bank to borrow
$605,000 for the purchase of vehicles. The lease bears interest at a rate of 3.2% per annum payable monthly. Payments are due
monthly starting February 2, 2004. This lease was prorated between primary government and business-type activities at a rate of 71
and 29 percent, respectively. The annual requirements to amortize the 2004 Equipment Lease (primary government portion only) as of

June 30, 2006 based on the final lease amount of $605,000, are as follows:

2004 Equipment Lease

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 86,000 $5,848 $ 91,848

2008 86,000 3,096 89,096

2009 49,696 526 50,222

$ 221,696 $9.470 $ 231,166

2004 911 Equipment Lease

On Aughst 19, 2003, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with SunTrust Bank to borrow
$600,000 for the purchase of additional 911 equipment. The lease bears interest at a rate of 2.89% per annum, payable monthly.
Payments are due monthly starting August 19, 2003. The annual requirements to amortize the 2004 911 Lease as of June 30, 2006

based on the final lease amount of $600,000, are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $122,790 $6,202 $ 128,992

2008 126,386 2,606 128,992

2009 21,421 77 21,498

$ 270,991 $8.885 $279.482

2005 Exempt Financing Equipment Lease

On June 28, 2005, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with SunTrust Bank to borrow
$1,510,975 for the purchase of vehicles. The lease bears interest at a rate of 3% per annum, payable monthly. Payments are due
monthly starting July 28, 2005. The annual requirements to amortize the 2005 Equipment Lease as of June 30, 2006, based on the

final lease amount of $1,510,975, are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 291,149 $ 39,511 $ 330,660

2008 301,805 28,855 330,660

2009 312,851 17,809 330,660

2010 324 301 6,359 330,660

51,230,106 $092.534 $1,322,640
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Primary Government (continued)

2006 Exempt Financing Equipment Lease

On May 25, 2006, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with Suntrust Bank to borrow
$1,627,500 for the purchase of vehicles. The lease bears interest at a rate of 4.12% per annum, payable monthly. The annual

requirements to amortize the 2006 Equipment Lease as of June 30, 2008, based on the final lease amount of $1,627,500, are as
follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 299,498 $64,021 $ 363,519

2008 311,969 51,550 363,519

2009 324,959 38,560 363,519

2010 338,490 25,028 363,519

2011 352,584 10,935 363,519

$1.627.500 $190,095 $1.817.595

2006 Surplus Property, Transfer of Net Debt

On June 6, 2006, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into a public school property transfer agreement with St.
Mary's County Public Schools for the transfer of George Washington Carver Elementary School. With this property transfer, the County

agreed to assume the total outstanding State bond debt of $368,769. As of June 30, 2008, the principal and interest payments are as
follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal interest Total
2007 $ 83,864 $ 34,073 $ 117,937

2008 43,240 13,374 56,614

2009 45275 11,339 56,614

2010 47 407 9,207 56,614

2011 49,639 6,975 56,614

2012-2016 99,044 6,912 105,956
2017-2018 300 17 317

$ 368,769 $61.807 $ 450,666
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Primary Govemment {continued)

Long-term obligations at June 30, 2006 consist of the following:

Descripticn Due Rate
State loans:
Rural housing service, formerly Farmers
Home Administration (Watershed Project) 1972-2022 3.463%
Maryland Department of Natural Resources:
Point Breeze 1993-2017 None
Sandgates Road 1994-2015 None
Breton Bay Erosion Project 1983-2006 None
Jefferson Island #2 and #3 Erosion Projects 1985-2015 None
Tall Timbers #2 Erosion Project 1986-2012 None
Tall Timbers #3 Erosion Project 1991-2016 None
Jefferson Island Club, Inc. 1991-2016 None
Hollywood Shores 1998-2012 None
Holly Point Shores 8D None
Maryland Water Quality Loan 2003-2016 2.4%
Murray Road Revetment 2004-2028 None
Maryland Water Quality L.oan 2005-2019 None
Total state loans
General obligation bonds:
St. Mary's Hospita! Bonds of 1993 1994-2008 5.75-6.75%
Public Facilities Refunding Bonds of 1996 1997-2009 3.3-5.0%
St. Mary's County Consolidated Public
Improvement Project and Refunding Bonds of 1997 1998-2012 4.5-4.875%
Consotidated Public Improvement Bonds of 1999 2000-2019 5-6%
2001 General Obligation Bonds 2004-2022 3.80%
2003 Refunding Bonds . 2004-2020 3.25-5%
2002 St. Mary's Hospital Bonds 2006-2023 3.5-5.125%
2003 Public Facilities and Refunding Bonds 2006-2023 2.75-4.75%
Consolidated Public Improvement Bonds of 2005 2006-2025 3.75-4.25%

Total general obligation bonds
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Amount

$ 33,029

97,704
56,088
7,592
66,429
37,739
65,816
125,896
47,076
242,895
2,241,574
79,904
3,934,346

$7.036,048

$ 1,600,000
545,000

12,770,000

5,065,000
21,425,000
20,060,000
19,235,000
29,935,000
15,660,000

—_—d T Tl

$126,295,000
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Primary Govemment (continued)

Total state loans and bonds ' $ 133,331,048
Surplus property transfer of debt 368,769
Accrued landfill closure and postclosure costs 2,700,000
Exempt Financing 2,368,079
Accurnulated unpaid annual leave 3.212,042
Total $ 141,979,938
Less: Amount deferred on refunding $ (1783219

140,196,71

Business-Type Activities

Exempt Financing — Equipment Lease

On December 23, 2003, The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County entered into an agreement with Suntrust Bank to borrow
$605,000. The lease bears interest at a rate of 3.9% per annum payable monthly. Payments are due monthly starting February 2,
2004. This lease was prorated between primary government and business type activities at a rate of 71 and 29 percent, respectively.
The annual requirements to amortize the 2004 Equipment Lease (Business-Type portion only) as of June 30, 2006 based on the final
lease amount of $605,000, are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 $ 35,000 $ 2,380 $37,380
2008 35,000 1,260 36,260
2009 20,225 214 20,439
: $90,225 $ 3.8%4 $94.079
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7. Long-term obligations (continued}

Primary Govemment {continued)

Special assessment debt

Special assessment fund debt payable as of June 30, 2006 is composed of the following loans payable to the Maryland Department of
Natura! Resources:

Hollywood Shores, Shore Erosion Control Project, payabie
in fifteen annual installments of $7,846, without interest,
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the County. $47,076

Breton Bay, Shore Erosion Control Project, payable
in twenty-five annual installments of $7,589, without
interest, guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the County. 7,592

Tall Timbers, Shore Erasion Control Project, payable
in twenty-five annual instaliments of $7,547, without
interest, guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the County. 37,739

Tall Timbers, Shore Erosion Control Project, payable
in twenty-five annual installments of $6,582, without
interest, guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the County. 65,816

Jefferson Island, Shore Erosion Control Project, originatly

payabie in twenty-five annual installments of $10,109,

without interest, modified during fiscal year 1993 to

eighteen varying annual payments without interest,

guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the County. 66,429

Jefferson island, Shore Erosion Control Project, originally
payable in twenty-five annual installments of $11,040,
without interest, modified during fiscal year 1993 to
twenty-two varying annual payments without interest,
guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the County.
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Component Units

St. Mary's County Public Schools

Long-term Liabilities

General long-term debt at June 30, 2006, consists of financing agreement obiigations and accumulated compensated absences
payable. The interest rates on the financing agreement obligations range from 2.65% ta 4.75% with maturity dates up to October 2016.
The financing agreement obligations are secured by the capital assets purchased. The following is a summary of changes in the
School System's general long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2006.

Balance Deductions/ Balance Amounts due
June 30,2005 Additions Maturities June 30, 2006 Within one year
Governmental activities:
Financing agreements
Office facility construction $4,710,709 3 0 $(300,341) $4,410,368 $314,527
School buses and related
equipment 319,909 0 (172,712) 147 197 147 197
Vehicles 0 245,000 ] 245,000 43,019
$ 5,030,618 $245,000 $(473,053) $4,802 565 $504,743
Other long-term liabilities;
Compensated absences $ 3,102,305 $623,99 $(339,817) $3,386,484 $302673
Governmental activities:
Long-term liabilities $ 8,132,923 $868,996 $(812,870) $8,189,049 $807 416
Business-type activities:
Qther long-term liabifities:
Compensated absences $ 72120 $ 48,060 $ (27,751) $ 92429 $ 4221

The compensated absences liability attributable to the govemmental activities will be liquidated solely by the General Fund.



The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units (continued)

St. Mary's County Public Schools (continued)

Long-term Liabilities {continued)

Following is a schedule of current maturities, including interest, under financing agreements as of June 30, 2006

Year Ending June 30, Total Principal interest
2007 $ 721,495 $ 504,743 $ 216,752
2008 569,752 366,549 203,203
2009 569,752 383,786 185,966
2010 569,752 401,834 167,918
2011 569,752 420,732 149,020
2012-2016 2,665,848 2224772 441,076
2017 523911 500,149 23,762

56,190,262 $4,802.565 $1.387,697

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County

Long-term debt

Long-term debt consists of accrued compensated absences. The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year
ended June 30, 2006:

Balance Balance Amounts due
July 1, 2005 Increase June 30, 2006 within one vear
$ 85,346 $ 2,666 $88,012 $0
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Companent Units (continued)

Metropolitan Commission

Long-term debt

Long-term bonds payable as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Bonds payable

Description Due Rate Principal Interest
Third Issue 1976-2006 5.0-6.0% $ 95000 $ 2708
Tenth Issue 1995-2015 5.56 -6.08% 210,000 67,810
Twelfth Issue 1996-2013 3.9-525% 1,415,000 306,074
Fourteenth Issue 2001-2029 4.125-5.0% 1,594,800 1,112,468
Seventeenth Issue 2008-2019 2.75-4.40% 5,733,292 1,689 898
Twenty-first Issue 2007-2021 3.65-4.275% 1,158,700 408,614
10,206,792 3,587,572

Less current portion 745,300 438,332
Total $ 9,461,492 $3,149.240

The annual requirements to amortize principal and interest payments of all bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal tnterest
2007 {current) $ 745300 $ 438,332
2008 674,700 404,662
2009 699,000 378,215
2010 728,400 350,467
2011 752,700 320,723
2012-2016 ' 3,523,800 1,105,643
2017-2021 2,316,192 406,425
2022-2026 440,400 149,905
2027-2029 326,300 33,200

$10,206,792 $3.587.572

63




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units {continued)

Metropolitan Commission (continued)

Redemption — Tenth Issue — DHCD Loan

Optional redemption

Bonds that mature on or before June 1, 2005 are not subject to redemption prior to their maturities. Bonds that mature on or after

June 1, 2005 are subject to redemption beginning June 1, 2005, as a whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date, in
order of maturities, at the option of MetCom, at the following redemption prices expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of
bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Period During Which Redeemable

(Both Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
June 1, 2005 fo May 31, 2006 102%
June 1, 2006 to May 31, 2007 101%
June 1, 2007 and thereafter 100%

Redemption — Twelth Issue

Optional redemption

Bonds that mature on or before June 1, 2006 are not subject to redemption prior to their maturities. Bonds that mature on or after

June 1, 2006 are subject to redemption beginning June 1, 2006, as a whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date, in
order of maturities, at the option of MetCom, at the following redemption prices expressed as a percentage of the principal amount of
bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Period During Which Redeemable

(Both Dates Inclusive) Redemption Price
June 1, 2006 to May 31, 2007 101%
June 1, 2007 to May 31, 2008 100-1/2%
June 1, 2008 and thereafter 100%
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Compenent Units {continued)

Metropolitan Commission (continued)

Fourteenth Issue

On May 18, 1999, the Commission issued $1,830,900 of Infrastructure Financing Bonds in conjunction with the Maryland Community
Development Administration (CDA). As of June 30, 2006, the Commission had drawn $1,830,900 of the proceeds.

Principal payments are due from 2001-2029. The average interest cost is 4.86%.

The bonds may be prepaid at the following premiums:

Period Price
June 1, 2009 through May 31, 2010 101%
June 1, 2010 through May 31, 2011 100-1/2%
After June 1, 2011 100%

Seventeenth Issue

On September 4, 2003, MetCom issued Refunding Bonds of 2003 in the principal amount of $6,105,000. The bonds mature on
November 1, in 14 annual installments, beginning in 2005 and ending in 2018. Interest rates on the bonds range from 2.75% to 4.4%.
Interest is payable on May 1, 2004 and semiannually thereafter on each May 1 and November 1. to maturity.

The bonds may be prepaid at the following premiums:

Period Price
November 1, 2013 through October 31, 2014 101%
November 1, 2014 through October 31, 2015 100-1/2%
After November 1, 2015 100%

The bonds were issued to refund all the outstanding maturities of the St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission Refunding Bonds of
1993 (Ninth Issue).

The outstanding amount of refunding bond issue number seventeen is shown net of a deferred loss on the advance refunding of
$106,708.
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units (continued)

Metropalitan Commission {continued)

Twenty-first Issue

In fiscal year 2006, the Commission issued Refunding Bonds of 2006 in the principal amount of $1,158,700. The bonds mature on
May 1, in 15 annual instaliments, beginning in 2007 and ending in 2021. Interest rates on the bonds range from 3.65% to 4.275%.
Interest is payable on November 1, 2006 and semiannually thereafter on each May 1 and November 1 to maturity.

This bond is not subject to prepayment by the Issuer prior to May 1, 2016. On or after May 1, 2017, this bond is subject to prepayment
by the Issuer at 100%.

The bonds were issued to refund all the outstanding maturities of the Financing Bonds in conjunction with the Maryland Community
Development Administration (CDA). The Thirteenth Issue was fully refunded and $500,000 of the Tenth Issue was fully refunded.

Current-year defeasance of debt

On April 5, 2006, MetCom issued $1,158,700 of Refunding Bonds with a true interest cost ranging from 3.65% to 4.275% to refund
certain maturities of $620,000 in cutstanding 1996 series A bonds with a coupon rate of 5.579% and $500,000 in outstanding 1995
series A bonds with an average interest rate of 6.24%. These bonds were issued to take advantage of a favorable interest rate
environment. The net proceeds (including interest and premium) of $1,131,200 were deposited with an escrow agent to provide for afl
future debt service payments of the refunded bonds.

MetCom refunded these bonds at a premium to reduce its total debt service payments by $152,325 and to obtain an economic gain
(difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $110,445.
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units (continued)

Metropolitan Commission {continued)

Notes, leases, and loans payable

Notes, leases and loans payable as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Description Due Rate Principal Interest
Leonardtown 2010-2020 6.10 - 10% $ 147373 $ 54,785
MD Bank and Trust 2009 4.15% 82,108 7,008
MD Bank and Trust 2010 4.80% 70,438 8,778
Sixth Issue 2017 6.682% 136,931 60,767
MD Water Quality Loan #8 2012 3.45% 540,950 67,609
MO Water Quality Loan #11 2017 4.26% 2,702,863 738,717
MD Water Quality Loan #15 2020 2.70% 629,339 134,781
MO Water Quality Loan #16 2023 1.20% 485,548 48,858
MD Water Quality Loan #18 2025 1.10% 4,264,659 462,706
MD Water Quality Loan #19 2024 1.10% 288,485 29,570
MD Water Quality Loan #20 2024 1.10% 912984 89,466

10,261,678 1,703,045
Less current portion 678.037 241678
Total $ 9,583,641 $ 1,461,367
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units {continued)

Metropolitan Commission (continued)

Notes, leases, and loans payable (continued)

As of June 30, 2006, MetCom has seven loans from the Maryland Water Quality Financing Administration. Proceeds from loan number
eight amounting to $1,326,045 are to be used to finance the Marley-Taylor WRF Interim Expansion. Proceeds from loan number
eleven of 34,177,116 were used to finance the Marley-Taylor WRF Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Expansion Project.
Loan number fifteen for $835,000 was drawn during the year ended June 30, 2000 for the purposes of financing an office buitding for
the administrative use of MetCom. Loan number sixteen for $567,680 was used to upgrade the Leonardtown wastewater treatment
plant. Loan number eighteen for $4,712,200 is to be used to upgrade the Marley-Taylor WRF. Proceeds drawn at June 30, 2006 were
$4,476,590. Loan number nineteen for $976,700 is to be used to replace the wastewater pumping station. Proceeds drawn at June
30, 2006 were $335,940. Loan number twenty is to be used for water meter installations. As of June 30, 2006 amounts drawn on the
loan were $1,074,536. During FY20086, loan number eight was refinanced at an interest rate of 3.45%. MetCom refunded these bonds
to reduce its total debt service payments by $23,631 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt
service payments on the old and new debt) of $19,348.

The annual requirements to amortize principal and interest payments on ail notes, leases and loans outstanding as of June 30, 2008,
are as foliows:

Year ending June 30 Principal Interest
2007 (current) $ 678,037 $ 241678
2008 698,400 222 563
2009 719,575 202,664
2010 711,563 181,912
2011 713,375 161,566
2012-2016 3,347,318 518,432
2017-2021 2,193,321 144,010
2022-2025 1,200,089 30,220
10.261,67 1,703.04
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Component Units (continued)

Metropolitan Commission (continued)

Changes in long-term debt

The changes in long-term debt payable for the year ended June 30, 2006 were as follows:

Balance Balance Amounts due

July 1, 2005 Additions Deductions June 30, 2006 Within one year

Bonds payable $10,786,700 $1,158,700 $1,738,608 $10,206,792 $745 300
Notes, leases and

loans payable 9,420,787 1,576,150 735,259 10,261,678 678,037

Total long-term debt $20,207 487 $2,734 850 $2,473,867 $20,468,470 $1,423.337

Building Authority Commission

Long-term Debt

Changes in Long-term Debt

The changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2006 were as follows:

Balance Balance Amounts due
July 1, 2005 Additions Deductions June 30, 2006  within one year
Bonds payable 10,41 $0 $976,000 $9.440,000 $1.000.000

Nursing Home Refunding Bonds

General

The refunding bonds are dated December 2, 2003 and were issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6,230,000.
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7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units (continued)

Building Authority Commission (continued)

Nursing Home Refunding Bonds {continued)

Interest payments due under the bonds are made payable to the registered bond-owners of record as of the last business day of the
month next preceding each such interest payment date. Each bond bears interest from the most recent date on which interest was

paid.

Optional redemption

Bonds that mature on or before July 15, 2013, are not subject to redemption prior to their maturities. Bonds that mature on or after

July 15, 2014, are subject to redemption beginning July 15, 2013, as a whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date, in any
order of maturities, at the option of the Commission, at the following redemption prices expressed as a percentage of the principal
amount of bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption:

Period During Which Redeemable

{both dates inclusive) Redemption Price
“July 15, 2013 to July 14, 2014 101%
July 15, 2014 to July 14, 2015 100.5%
July 15, 2015 and thereafter 100%

70




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Component Units (continued)

Building Authority Commission (continued)

Nursing Home Refunding Bonds {continued)

If fewer than all of the bonds of any one maturity are called for redemption, the particular bonds or portion of bonds to be redeemed
from such maturity will be selected by lot by the Bond Registrar.

When iess than all of a bond in a denomination in excess of $5,000 is so redeemed, then, upon the surrender thereof, there will be
fssued without charge to the registered owner thereof, for the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such bond, at the option
of such owner, bonds in any of the authorized denominations as specified by the registered owner, The aggregate face amount of
such bonds issued will be equal to the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of the bond surrendered, and the bonds issued will
bear the same interest rate and will mature on the same date as the unredeemed balance of the bond surrendered.

Notice of redemption

If the Commission elects to redeem all or a portion of the bonds outstanding, it will give a redemption notice to the registered owners of
the bonds to be redeemed by letter mailed first class, postage prepaid, at least thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to
the addresses of such registered owners appearing on the registration books kept by the Bond Registrar; provided however, that the
failure to mail the redemption notice or any defect in the notice so mailed or in the mailing thereof will not affect the validity of the
redemption proceedings; and provided further, that the Commission will publish notice of redemption at least once {not less than thirty
(30} days prior to the date fixed for redemption} in a financial journal or daily newspaper of general circulation in the Borough of
Manhattan, New York, New York. The redemption notice will state (i) whether the bonds are redeemed in whole or in part and, if in
part, the maturities and numbers of the bonds to be redeemed, (i) that the interest on the bonds to be redeemed will cease to accrue
on the date fixed for redemption, (iif} the date fixed for redemption and the redemption price, and (iv) that the bonds to be redeemed will
be presented for redemption and payment on the date fixed for redemption at the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent.

From and after the date fixed for redemption, if notice has been duly and properly given and if funds sufficient for the payment of the
redemption price and accrued interest are avaitable on such date, the bonds designated for redemption will cease to bear interest,
Upon presentation and surrender for redemption in compliance with the redemption notice, the bonds to be redeemed will be paid by
the Paying Agent at the redemption price. If they are not paid upon presentation, the bonds designated for redemption will continue to

bear interest at the rates stated therein unti paid.

The nursing home refunding bonds were issued to refund the Commission's Nursing Home Project and Refunding Bonds of 1992. The
Commission reduced its future debt service costs by $959,538 and experienced an economic gain of $798,982 as a result of the

refunding.
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Component Units {continued})

Building Authority Commission (continued)

State Office Building Refunding Bonds

The certificates were dated June 1, 1994, in the amount of $8,760,000 and were issued in serial and term form in the principal
amounts, maturing (subject to the redemption provisions set forth below) and bearing interest.

The certificates were executed and delivered in fully registered form, without coupons, in denominations of $5,000 each or any integral
multiple thereof. Interest is payable on the certificates on each June 1 and December 1. The principal or redemption price of the
certificates is payable at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee in Baltimore, Maryland. Interest is payable by check mailed
by the Trustee to the registered Holders of certificates as their names and addresses appear in the registration books maintained by
the Trustee as of (i) the fifteenth calendar day of the month next preceding each interest payment date or (i) in the case of the payment
of any defaulted interest, the tenth (10) day before such payment. At the request of a Holder of certificates in the aggregate principal
amount of at least $500,000, such payments may be made by wire transfer in accordance with written instructions filed by such Holder
with the Trustee. Interest on the certificates is calculated on the basis of a year consisting of 360 days divided into twelve 30-day
months.

-Mandatory extraordinary redemption

. Redemption provisions

The certificates are subject to mandatory redemption in whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date at par plus accrued
interest (i) if the project is damaged, destroyed or condemned, from insurance or condemnation praceeds not required to rebuild or
modify the project after such damage, destruction or condemnation or (ii) if the project is damaged, destroyed or condemned, and the
insurance or condemnation proceeds are insufficient to repair, rebuild or modify the project and the State elects not to use its own
funds for such purpose, from insurance and condemnation proceeds and amounts then payable by the State as prepayment of the
entire project purchase price.

72




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

7. Long-term obligations (continued)

Component Units (continued)

Building Authority Commission (continued)

State Office Buitding Refunding Bonds (continued)

Optional redemption

The certificates maturing on or after December 1, 2004, are subject to optional redemption prior to their maturity beginning June 1,
2004, in whole or in part at any time to the extent the State exercises its option to prepay all or a portion of the project purchase price.
Upon any such prepayment of the project purchase price, a like principal amount of certificates will be redeemed at the redemption
prices {expressed as percentages of the principal amount of such certificates or portions thereof to be redeemed) set forth below, pius

alt interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption;

Period During Which Redeemable

(both dates inclusive) Redemption Price
June 1, 2004 to May 31, 2005 102%
June 1, 2005 to May 31, 2006 101%
June 1, 2_006 and thereafter 100%

The certificates maturing on June 1, 2013 are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption on the following dates in the following
amaounts, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption:

$1,055,000 term certificates due June 2013:

Sinking Fund
Date Instaliment
June 1, 2012 $ 340,000
December 1, 2012 $ 355,000
June 1, 2013 $ 360,000

The principal amount of certificates redeemed from sinking fund instaliments due on any date will be reduced by an amount equal to
the aggregate principal amount of certificates purchased by the Trustee in the open market or redeemed prior to such date and not

theretofore credited against a sinking fund instaliment.

Selection of certificate to be redeemed

If fewer than all of the certificates are called for redemption, the Trustee will redeem the certificates in any order of maturity selected by
the State and by lot in such manner as the Trustee wil determine within any maturity; provided, however, that the portion of any
certificate to be redeemed will be in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and, in sefecting certificates for
redemption, the Trustee will redeem each certificate as representing that number of certificates that is obtained by dividing the principal

amount of such certificate by $5,000.
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7. Long-term obligations (continued}

Component Units (continued)

Building Authority Commission {continued)

State Office Building Refunding Bonds (continued)

Notice of redemption

The Trustee will mail notice of redemption, by first class mail, not fewer that 30 days before the date of redemption to the registered
Holders of the certificates of the maturity or maturities to be redeemed at their addresses shown on the registration books maintained
by the Trustee. Notice having been given and sufficient monies having been delivered to the Trustee, interest will cease to accrue on
the certificates to be redeemed on and after the date fixed for redemption. Any notice of redemption may indicate that such redemption
is conditioned upon the deposit of sufficient monies to effect such redemption on the redemption date. The failure by the Trustee to
mail a notice of redemption with respect to any particular certificate will not affect the validity of the redemption of any other certificate
for which proper notice will have been given.

Security and sources of payment for the certificates

The certificates are payable as to principal, redemption price and interest solely from base rentals to be paid by the State pursuant to
the lease agreement, monies attributable to the sale, leasing or other disposition of the project by the Trustee upon the occurrence of
certain defaults by the State pursuant to the lease agreement and amounts from time to time on deposit in certain funds and accounts
established by the Trust Agreement. Pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Commission has executed and delivered the mortgage to
the Trustee and has assigned to the Trustee all of its rights under the lease agreement and the ground lease (except for its rights under
certain provisions in respect of indemnification and an option to purchase the project site), and all amounts on deposit from time to time
in such funds and accounts for the benefit of the Holders of the certificates.

All amounts payable by the State under the lease agreement, including the base rentals, are subject in each year to appropriation by
the Maryland General Assembly. The Maryland General Assembly is under no obligation to make any appropriation with respect to the
lease agreement. The lease agreement is not a general obligation of the State, the County or the Commission within the meaning of
any constitutional or statutory iimitation or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the State, the County or the
Commission.

Itis expected that each department and agency utilizing the project will pay its portion of the base rentals to the Department of General
Services, which will pay to the Trustee the total amount of base rentals due under the lease agreement. Although the sources of funds
appropriated to pay the base rentals are not limited to any particular source of State revenue, the State expects that the base rentals
will be paid and appropriated from the State's General Fund, and, to the extent available to particular departments and agencies, from
certain of the State's other budgetary funds.
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7. Long-term obligations {continued)

Component Units (continued)

Building Authority Commission (continued)

The annuai requirements to amortize the principal of all bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

State

Years Office Building Nursing Home Total
2007 $ 510,000 $ 490,000 § 1,000,000
2008 540,000 510,000 1,050,000
2009 565,000 530,000 1,095,000
2010 605,000 535,000 1,140,000
2011 635,000 555,000 1,190,000
2012-2016 1,385,000 2,205,000 3,590,000
2017 0 375,000 375,000

$ 4,240,000 $ 5,200,000 $ 9,440,000

The annual requirements to amortize the interest of all bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2005 are as follows:

State

Years Office Building Nursing Home Total
2007 $229,742 $ 156,067 $ 385809
2008 201,405 143,567 344,972
2009 171,292 129,904 301,196
2010 139,668 114,591 254,259
2011 105,518 98,241 203,759
2012-2016 100,055 240,609 340,664
2017 0 7,031 7,031

$ 947,680 $ 890,010 $ 1,837,690
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The County Commissioners for St. Mary’s County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

8. Fund balances (continued)

The reserve for fund balance represents;

Encumbrances - The amount of outstanding purchase orders at June 30, 2006.
Inventory - The amount of inventory at June 30, 2006, carried as an asset.

Fixed assets - The cost of land purchased at tax sales by The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County carried as an asset at
June 30, 2006.

Retirement of long-term obligations - The amount of future revenue to be used for the retirement of long-term obligations.
Domestic violence programs - The amount of marriage license fees committed for domestic violence programs by resolution.

Future project revenue - The amount of revenue previously collected which is anticipated to be used for future capital projects.
Amounts have been collected from bonds, transfer tax and other sources.

Other - The amount of funds committed for general fund expenditures.
The general fund designated fund balance is composed of:

Budgetary {Non-GAAP) Basis

Appropriation for FY 2007 operating budget $5,460,366

Appropriation for FY 2007 CiP/Paygo 14,228,277
Bond rating reserve - 6% of FY 2007 budgeted

general fund revenues 8,652,870

Rainy day fund 1.375,000

30,716,513

Adjustments to modified accrual basis 304,935

$31,021,448

The designated reserve for the FY2007 operating budget includes $3.5 million fo initially fund a trust for post-employment health
benefits for County employees (see Note 14).
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9. Retirement plans

Primary Government

Plan description

The employees of the County are covered by the State Retirement and Pension System of Maryland {the System), the administrator of
an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system established by the State Personnel and Pensions Article of the
Annotated Code of Maryland to provide retirement allowances and other benefits to State employees, teachers, police, judges,
legislators and empioyees of participating governmental units. Responsibility for the administration and operation of the System is
vested in a 14-member Board of Trustees. The State of Maryland is obligated for the payment of ali pension annuities, retirement
allowances, refunds, reserves and other benefits of the System. Additionally, the System is fiscally dependent on the State by virtue of
the legislative and executive controls exercised with respect to its operations, policies and administrative budget. The System is a
component unit of the State of Maryland's financial reporting entity and is included in the State's financial statements as a pension trust
fund. The County's total payroil for the year ended June 30, 2006 was $32,232,719, of which $17,938,362 was covered under the

System.

The System comprises the Teachers' Retirement System, Empioyees’ Retirement System, Teachers' Pension System, Employees'
Pension System, State Police Retirement System, Judges Retirement System, Natural Resources Pension System and the Local Fire

and Police System.

The Employees’ Retirement System was established on October 1, 1941, to provide retirement allowances and other benefits to State
employees and the employees of participating governmental units. Current members of this System include State correctional officers,
members of the Maryland General Assembly, and employees who have not elected to transfer to the applicable Employees' Pension
System.

The Employees' Pension System was established on January 1, 1880. As a result, State employees {other than correctional officers),
and employees of participating govemmental units hired after December 31, 1979, become members of their applicable Pension
System as a condition of employment. Members of the Employees' Retirement System have the opportunity to irrevocably transfer to
their respective Pension System. For those transferring, all prior service credit and member contributions above the social security
wage base are transferred from the applicable retirement system to the corresponding pension system. Member contributions up to the
social security wage base are refunded to the members.

Plan benefits

Retirement allowances are computed using the highest three years' average final salary (AFS) and the actual number of years of
accumulated creditable service. Pension allowances are computed using both the highest three consecutive years AFS and the actual
number of years of accumulated creditable service. Various retirement options are available under each System which ultimately
determine how a retiree's benefit allowance will be computed. Some of these options require actuarial reductions based on the retiree's
or spouse's attained age and similar actuarial factors.

The Teachers' and Employees' Retirement Systems' members are eligible for full retirement benefits upon attaining the age of 60, or
upon accumulating 30 years of eligibility service, regardless of age. The annual retirement allowance equals 1/55 (1.8%) of a member's
AFS multiplied by the number of years of accumulated service credit. A member may retire with reduced benefits after completing 25
years of eligibility service,
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9. Retirement plans {continued)

Primary Govemment (continued)

Plan benefits (continued)

The Teachers' and Employees’ Pension Systems’ members are eligible for full retirement benefits upon attaining at least age 62 with
specified years of eligibility service, or upon accumulating 30 years of eligibility service regardless of age. The annual pension
allowance is equal to .8% of a member's AFS up to the Social Security Integration Level (SSIL), plus 1.5% of 2 member's AFS in
excess of the SSIL, multiplied by the number of years of accumulated service credit. For the purpose of computing pension allowances,
the SSIL is the average of the social security wage bases for the 35 calendar years ending with the year the retiree separates from
service. A member may retire with reduced benefits after attaining age 55 and completing 15 years of eligibiity service.

Retirement and pension allowances are increased annually to provide for changes in the cost of living in accordance with prescribed
formulae. Such adjustments are based on the annual change in the Consumer Price Index, except that annual pension allowance

increases are limited to 3% of the initial allowance.

The System has adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.25, Financial Reporting for Defined
Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans.

Funding status and progress

Pension benefit obligation is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of
projected salary increases, estimated to be payabie in the future as a result of employee service to date. The measure is the actuarial
present value of credited projected benefits and is intended to help users assess the System's funding status on a going-concer basis,
assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make comparisons among public employee
retirement systems. The measure is independent of the actuarial funding method used to determine contributions to the System.

The pension benefit obligation was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at June 30, 2005. The significant actuarial assumptions
used in the actuarial valuations include (a) rate of return on the investment of 7.75% compounded annually (adopted June 30, 2003),
(b} projected salary increases of 4% per year compounded annually, attributable to inflation (adopted June 30, 2003), (¢} additional
projected salary increases ranging from 0.00% to 11.96% per year, attributable to seniority and merit (adopted June 30, 2003), (d)
post-retirement benefit increases ranging from 3% to 4% per year depending on the system (adopted June 30, 2003), (e} rates of
mortality, termination of service, disablement and retirement are based on actual experience during the period from 1981 through 2002
(adopted June 30, 2003), and (f) an increase in the aggregate active member payrofl of 4% annually (adopted June 30, 2003).
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3. Retirement plans (continued)

Primary Government {continued)

Funding status and progress (continued)

At June 30, 2005, the System's unfunded pension benefit obligation (i.e., pension benefit obligation less net assets available for
benefits) in accordance with GASB No. 25 was as follows:

Pension benefit obligation:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits and terminated employees not yet

receiving benefits $20,975,329 441
Current employees 18,158,120,326
Total pension benefit obligation 39,133,449,767
Net actuarial assets available for benefits 34,519,500,335
Unfunded actuarial pension benefit obligation 4,613,949,372

The schedule befow (expressed in thousahds) presents the actuarial value of the System's assets and the actuarial accrued liability as
of June 30, 2005 and the preceding two years. The schedule is intended to help the users assess the funding status of the System.

2005 2004 2003
Actuarial value of assets $34,519,500 $33,484,657 $32,631,485
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 39,133.450 36,325,704 34,974 601
Unfunded AAL $4,613.950 $2.841.047 $2,343,136
Funded ratio - 88.21% 92.18% 83.3%
Covered payroll $8,603,761 $8,069,481 $8,134,418
Unfunded AAL as a % of payroll 54% 35% 25%
Annual pension cost 805,564 $710,632 $654,578
Percentage contributed 83% 89% 92%
Net pension obligation $0 $0 $0
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Primary Government (continued)

Contributions required and made

The State Personnel and Pensions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland requires contributions by active members and their
employers. Rates for required contributions by active members are established by law. Members of the Teachers' and Employees'
Retirement Systems are required to contribute 7% (or 5% depending upon the retirement option selected) of eamable compensation.
Members of the Pension Systems are required to contribute 5% of earnable compensation in excess of the social security wage base.
Members of the Teachers' Pension System and State employees who are members of the Employees’ Pension System are required to

contribute 2% of earnable compensation.

Employer contributions totaling $239,855,000 for fiscal year 2005 were made in accordance with actuarially determined contribution
requirements based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2005. Employer contributions consisted of normal cost and
amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over a 40-year period from July 1, 1980. Employee contributions, which are
applied to normai cost, for fiscal year 2005 totaled approximately $208,997,000. The County's centributions o the System for the year

ended June 30, 2006 were $1,366,051.

The computation of the pension contribution requirements for fiscal year 2005 was based on the same actuarial assumptions, benefit
provisions, actuarial funding method and other significant factors used to determine pension contribution requirements in the previous

year.

Histerical trend information

Historical trend information which provides data about the Systems' progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension
benefits when due is presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements in the System's comprehensive annual

financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

Sheriff's Department plan

Effective date

The effective date of the planis July 1, 1986, with amendments effective October 2000 and September 2006.

Participation

All Sheriffs Department employees who were hired after June 30, 1986 participate in the plan. Also, each Sheriffs Department
employee who was employed by St. Mary's County prior to July 1, 1986, and who participated in the Maryland State Retirement

System, may elect to participate in the plan.

Participants are required to make mandatory contributions to the plan equal to 6% of annuat compensation. Employee contributions are
credited with interest at the rate of 4% per annum. The County pays the entire remaining cost of the pian.
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Sheriff's Department Plan (continued)

Credited service

Credited service for participants hired prior to July 1, 1986, is equal to the sum of.

a. Service subsequent to June 30, 1986, while a participant of the plan.

b. Military service, not in excess of five years.

¢. Service with the Sheriff's Depariment while a participant in the State of Maryland Employees' Retirement System.

d. Service with the Sheriffs Department while a paricipant in the State of Maryland Employees' Pension System and/or
MarylandEmployees' Retirement System which the employee elects to buy back by paying into the plan an amount equat to
employee contributions for such service, accumulated with interest. Such service is reduced by 25% for the purpose of calculating

benefits if participants elect not to buy back such service.

e. Service not with the Sheriff's Department, but while participating in the Maryland Systems stated above. Such service shall count
only in eligibility and not in the benefit determination.

Credited service for participants hired subsequent to June 30, 1986, is equal to:
a. Service while a participant of the plan; plus

b.  Military service, not in excess of five years and

¢. Any approved leave of absence up to 12 months.

In addition, for purposes of calculating the amount of the plan benefit only for a participant etigible for early, normal or late retirement,
credit shall be given for unused sick leave as follows: 22 days of unused sick leave shall equal 1 month of credited service.

Final average earnings

“Final Average Eamnings” is the average compensation received during three consecutive years of service, out of the ten calendar
years prior to termination, which produces the highest average.

Normat retirement

Eligibility - A participant's normal retirement date is the earliest of the 62nd birthday or the completion of 25 years of service.

Amount - Unless an optional method of payment is elected, the annual normal retirement pension benefit, payable in monthly
instaliments for life, will equal 2% of the participant's final average eamings for each year of credited service not in excess of 35 years.
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9. Retirement plans {continued)

Sheriff's Department Pian {continued)

Early retirement

Eligibility - A participant who retires prior to becoming eligibe for normal retirement but on or after completion of 20 years of credited
service.

Amount - The amount of the early retirement pension is determined in the same manner as for normai retirement.

A participant may elect to have benefits commence on the Normal Retirement Date or any month following termination. Benefits are
reduced 1/2% for each month the benefit commencement date precedes the nommal retirement date.

Late retirement

Eligibility - A participant who continues to work past the normal retirement date is eligible for a postponed retirement benefit,

Amount - The amount of the postponed retirement benefit is determined in the same manner as the normal benefit, based on final
average earnings and credited service at the time of actual retirement.

Disability benefit

Eligibility - A participant who is unable to perform the duties of the position by reason of physical or mental disability, which is expected
to be total and permanent, is eligible for a disability benefit commencing in the month following disablement. The benefit will continue

untit death or recovery.

Amount - The annual benefit is equal to 1.6% of the participant’s final average eamings for each year of credited service not in excess
of 35 years. For line of duty disability, the annual benefit is equal to 2/3 of the participant's final earnings plus an annuity based on the
amount of the participant's accumulated contributions, if the disability qualifies as a catastrophic disability pursuant to the Plan. For a
line of duty disability which is non-catastrophic, the annual benefit is equal to 1/3 of the participant's finaf earnings plus an annuity
based on the amount of the participant's accumulated contributions pursuant to the Plan.

Pre-retirement death benefit

Lump sum benefit

Eligibility - The participant's beneficiary will be entitied to a lump sum benefit if the participant dies prior to termination of employment.
Amount - 100% of the participant's annual compensation, plus employee contributions accumulated with interest

Survivor's pension

Eligibility - The spouse or dependent child of a participant who dies prior to termination of employment but after completing 5 years of
credited service may receive a monthiy benefit commencing the first of the month foliowing the participant's death. The benefit s
payable until death or remarriage (if the beneficiary is the spouse) or as a temporary annuity (if the beneficiary is a chifd) payable until
the child attains age 18 (23 if a full-time student).
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9. Retirement plans (continued)

Sheriffs Department Plan (continued)

Survivor's pension {continued)

Amount - The amount of such benefit will be 50% of the amount determined in the same manner as the disability benefit. The
beneficiary may elect to receive the lump sum death benefit in lieu of the survivors pension.

Deferred vested benefit

Eligibility - A participant who terminates employment and has completed five years of vesting service is eligible to receive a deferred
vested benefit beginning at age 62.

Amount - The amount of the participant's deferred vested pension is determined in the same manner as the normal retirement pension
based on final average earnings and credited service at the participant's termination of employment. If a terminated vested participant
dies prior to commencement of benefits, no benefits other than those provided in the withdrawal benefit, described below, are payable

from the plan.

Withdrawal benefit

A participant who terminates employment prior to becoming eligible to receive a benefit under one of the other provisions of the plan
will be eligible to receive the return of this accumulated contributions including interest to the first of the month preceding his
termination of employment. A vested participant who is not eligible for benefits commencing within one month of termination may elect
to withdraw his contributions and credited interest. In this event, the participant forfeits the deferred vested benefit described above.

Form of benefit

Monthly pension benefits will commence on the first of the month coincident with or next following the retirement date of the participant
and continue until the first of the month in which the retired participant dies, unless an optional method of payment has been elected. if
the participant dies before receiving benefits equal to the value of his accumulated employee contributions, the remainder will be paid
to his beneficiary.

Optional Benefit - A participant may elect to receive a reduced benefit in fieu of the benefits to which he would otherwise be entitled, in
an amount of actuarially equivalent value, as follows:

a. Joint and Survivor - a reduced pension during the iifetime of the pensioner, starting at his actual retirement date and
continuing to the pensioner's spouse at an amount which may be the same as the reduced amount payable to the participant
or one-half of the reduced amount paid to the participant.

b. Other - A participant may elect a pension payable in accordance with any other option approved by the Board of Trustees
{except an "interest only” option) which is the actuarial equivalent of the normal retirement pension to which the participant

was entitied at normal retirement date.
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Sheriffs Department Plan {continued)

Post-retirement pension increases

Each July 1, a cost of iiving increase will be granted to retired participants or spouses whose benefit has been in pay status at least one
year. The amount of the increase is the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index, with a maximum increase in one year of 4%.

The cost of fiving increase also applies fo deferred benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions

The funding method, data and assumptions used in the determination of cost estimates are presented below:

Employee data - The employee data used in the determination of cost estimates consists of pertinent information with respect to
participants as of July 1, 2004.

Valuation Date - July 1, 2004. The Board of Trustees elected to have the actuarial valuation period as of July 1, as opposed to the
January 1 date formerly used. This is more timely for contribution budget considerations,

Actuarial Funding Method - The actuarial valuation has been completed using the entry age normal method.

Rate of Investment Return - An average net rate of 7.75% {prior assumption was 8%) per annum (after investment expenses are
deducted} is assumed as the annual rate of investment retumn (including appreciation and depreciation, realized and unrealized).

Salary Scale - It has been assumed that salaries will increase at the rate of 6% per annum.
Cost of Living Increases - The cost of living is assumed to increase by 3% per year.
Annual Probability of Severance - At death - Pre-retirement mortality has been assumed to follow the 83 Group Annuity Mortality

tables. Post-retirement mortality has been assumed to follow the pre-retirement mortality for employees retiring on all but total and
permanent disability. Post-retirement mortality for disabled lives has been assumed to follow the pre-retirement mortality set forward 9

years.

Development of plan costs

Derivation of Normal Cost - The plan's normal cost is the sum of the individual normal costs determined for each participant, assuming
the plan had always been in existence and the actuarial assumptions underlying the cost determination are exactly realized. Benefits
payable under every circumstance (retirement, death, disability and termination) are included in the calculations. An allowance is also

added for expenses.
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Sheriff's Department Plan {continued)

Development of plan costs (continued)

The actuarial accrued fiability is the sum of all normal costs which would have accumulated, if the assumed normal cost had always
been contributed in the past and the actuarial assumptions had been exactly realized. The unfunded actuarial accrued liabiiity is the
actuarial accrued liability less the fund's assets at the valuation date.

Recommended contribution level

Recommended contributions are based on a 25-year amortization of the unfunded liability.

Key results: July 1, 2004
Number of Participants:
Active 168
Retired 24
Terminated vested 3
Disabled _21
Total 216
Total annual compensation of active participants - / 721

Actuarial accrued liability:

Actives $19,569,944

Nonactives 15,911,659
Total $35,481,603
Assets $21.635.590
Unfunded actuarial liability $13,846,013
Normal cost with adjustments:

Dollar amount ‘ % 1,157,545

Percent of payroll 14.70%

The amount of the Sheriff's Department's current year covered payroll is $10,273,378, and the Sheriff's Department's total payroll for all
employees is $11,531,918. The following employer contributions were made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006:

% of
Contributions Covered Payroll
Retirement plan $2,216,646 26.86%

&6




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

9. Retirement plans (continued)

Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue Squads and Advanced Life Support Unit

A length of service program for qualified active volunteer members of the St. Mary's County Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue
Squads and Advanced Life Support Unit was established effective July 1, 1980. An "active member” is defined as a person who
accumulated a minimum of fifty (50) points per calendar year in accordance with a point system. This program is funded and

administered by The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County.

Eligibility and benefits

a Any person who has served as a member of any St. Mary's County Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue Squads or Advanced
Life Support Unit is eligible to receive benefits provided that;

1) The person is certified in accordance with the point system to have served as an active volunteer subsequent to
December 31, 1979.

2) Any person who discontinued active volunteer service prior to July 1, 1980, may receive credit for the service after being
certified in accordance with the point system.

b. Beginning July 1, 1994, active volunteer fire and rescue squads and advanced life support unit personnel may select from two
Length of Service program benefit options. Selection of a benefit option by the individual is irevocable. The options, with

rates reflected effective July 1, 2008, are:

1) Any person who has reached the age of sixty (60} and who has compieted a minimum of twenty (20) years of certified
active volunteer service with any St. Mary's County Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue Squads or Advanced Life Support
Unit, or combination thereof, shall receive two hundred dollars ($200) per month, for life. Payments will begin in the month

following eligibility.

An additional payment of eight dollars {$8) per month shall be added to the benefit for each full year of volunteer
service in excess of twenty (20) years.

2) Any person who has reached the age of fifty-five {65) and who has completed a minimum of twenty (20) years of certified
- volunteer service with any St. Mary's County Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue Squads or Advanced Life Support Unit or

combination thereof, shall receive one hundred fifty ($150) per month for life.

An additional payment of eight dollars ($8) per month shall be added to the benefit for each full year of volunteer
service in excess of twenty (20} years.
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9. Retirement plans (continued)

Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue Squads and Advanced Life Support Unit (continued)

Eligibility and benefits (continued)

C.

In the event that any active volunteer becomes disabled during the course of his or her service while actively engaged in
providing such services and in the event that the disability prevents the volunteer from pursuing his or her normal occupation
and in the event that the disability is of a permanent nature as certified by the Maryland Workmen's Compensation
Commission or other competent medical authority as designated by The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, then
the volunteer is entitled to receive the minimum benefits prescribed above and any such benefits as he or she may be entitled
fo regardiess of his or her age or length of service. These benefits will begin on the first day of the month following the
establishment of the permanency of his or her disability.

In the event that any qualified valunteer shall die while receiving benefits, then his or her surviving spouse is entitied to
benefits equal to fifty percent (50%) of the volunteer's benefits. These benefits terminate upon death or remarriage of the

spouse.

In the event that a qualified volunteer dies prior to receiving any benefits under this section, his or her surviving spouse is
entitied to benefits equal to fifty percent (50%) of the volunteer's eamned benefits. These benefits terminate upon death or
remarriage of the spouse.

In the event that an active volunteer dies in the line of duty, a burial benefit up to two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) is
payable.

In the event that any active volunteer (herein defined as one who has at least two (2) years of qualifying service in the five (5)
preceding years} attains the age of seventy (70) years and fails to achieve the required twenty (20} years of service, then the
volunteer is entitled to a monthly benefit of the number of years of credited service completed, multiplied by eight dollars ($8).

Point system

da.

In order to qualify for benefits, points are credited to each volunteer as foliows:

1) One (1) point is credited for each hour of attendance in a recognized training course, provided that not more than twenty
(20) points may be credited for all training courses attended per year.

2) One {1) point is credited for each company or county drill that is a minimum of two (2) hours in duration attended in its
entirety, provided that not more than twenty-five (25) points may be credited for all drills attended per year.

3) One (1) point is credited for each official company or county meeting pertaining to St. Mary's County fire services or rescue
services attended, provided that not more than fifteen (15) points may be credited for all meetings attended per year.

4) One (1) point is credited for each call to which a volunteer responds, provided that not more than forty (40} points may be
credited for all calls responded to per year.
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Volunteer Fire Departments, Rescue Squads and Advanced Life Support Unit (continued)

Point system (continued)

3) Twenty-five (25) points are credited for completion of a one-year term as an appointed or elected officer in any of the fire or
rescue service organizations of St. Mary's County, provided that not more than one (1) office shall be counted in any calendar

year.

6) One-half (1/2) of a point is credited for each hour of acceptable collateral duties, such as but not limited to apparatus and
building maintenance, official standby and fire prevention, provided that not more than twenty-five (25) points may be credited

for all collateral duties performed per year,

7) A volunteer member who serves or has served full-time military service in the armed forces of the United States receives
credit at the rate of five (5} points for each month served, provided that not more than fifty (50) points can be credited for any
calendar year. A maximum of four (4) years of creditable service may be acquired in this manner. The volunteer member must
have been an active member for one (1) year prior to enlistment. The volunteer member must be reinstated within six (6)

months after discharge.

This length of service program is funded by The County Commissioners by annual appropriations. The total contribution for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2006 was $370,003.

Component Units

St. Mary's County Public Schools

Pension Plans

Plan description

The employees of the School System are covered by one of the following pension plans affiliated with the State Retirement and
Pension System of Maryland, an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system administered by the State Retirement

Agency:

The Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Maryland,
The Employees' Retirement System of the State of Maryland,
The Pension System for Teachers of the State of Maryland, or
The Pension System for Employees of the State of Maryland
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Component Units (continued)

St. Mary's County Public Schools (continued)

Pension Plans (continued)

Flan description (continued)

During the 1979 legislative session, the Maryland General Assembly created, effective January 1, 1980, the “Pension System for
Teachers of the State of Maryland” and the *Pension System for Employees of the State of Maryland.” Prior to this date, all teachers
and related positions were required to be members of the “Teachers' Retirement System of the State of Maryland,” and classified
positions were members of the "Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Maryland.” All School System employees who were
members of the “Retirement System” may remain in that System, or they may elect to join the “Pension System.” All teachers hired
within the State after December 31, 1979, must join the “Pension System for Teachers." All classified employees hired within the State
after December 31, 1979, must join the “Pension System for Employees.” The “Employees’ Retirement System” and the "Pension
System for Employees” cover those employees not covered by the teachers' plans. These employees are principally custodial,
maintenance, and food service employees.

These pension plans provide pension benefits and death and disability benefits. A member may retire after 25 years of service from
the Retirement System, and as early as age 55 and 15 years of service from the Pension system. Benefits generally vest after 5 years
of service. The State Retirement Agency issues a comprehensive annual financial report for the State Retirement and Pension System
of Maryland. That report may be obtained by writing to State Retirement and Pension System of Maryland, 120 East Baltimore Street,
Baltimore, Maryland 21202, or by calling 1-410-625-5555.

Funding policy

Both the "Retirement System” and the “Pension System” for teachers and classified employees are jointly contributory. Under the
“Retirement System" employees contribute 4% - 7% of their total gross salary, and under the “Pension System” employees contribute
2% of their gross salary. Effective July 1, 1980, in accordance with the law governing the Systems, all benefits of the Systems are
funded in advance. Annually appropriated employer contribution rates for retirement benefits are determined using the entry age
normal cost method. The method produces an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated
amount necessary to finance benefits earned by employees during the current service year), and (2) the amount for amortization of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability. A
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Component Units (continued)

St. Mary's County Public Schools (continued)

Pension Plans (continued)

Annual pension cost

St. Mary's County School System contributions totaling $667,539 or 0.7% of covered payroll, and contrbutions by the State of
Maryland on behalf of the School System totaling $6,935,380 or 7.8% of covered payroli for fiscal year 2006, were made in accordance
with actuarially determined contribution requirements based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2005. Significant
actuarial assumptions used, include (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of 7.75 percent per year
compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 4.0 percent per year compounded annually, aftributable to inflation, (c)
additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.00 percent to 11.96 percent per year, attributable to seniority/merit, (d) post-
retirement benefit increases ranging from 3 percent to 4 percent per year depending on the system, (e) rates of mortality, termination of
service, disablement and retirement are based on actual experience during the period from 1981 to 2002, and (f) the aggregate active
member payroll is assumed to increase by 4 percent annually.

The actuarial value of assets was determined using a five-year moving average. Under this method, the year end actuarial asset value
equals one-fifth of the current fiscal year end fair value, plus four-fifths of the expected market value. The unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll in distinct pieces. The UAAL which existed as of the

June 30, 2000 actuarial valuation is being amortized over the remaining 15-year period to June 30, 2020. Each new layer of UAAL
arising subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2000 is being amortized in separate layers over a 25-year period. A three-year trend of

the School System's annual pension cost is as follows:

Fiscal Year Total Annual APC Contributed APC Percentage Net
Ended Pension By School Contributed of APC Pension
June 30, Cast (APC) System By State Contributed Obligation
2004 $6,666,750 $423,543 $6,243,207 100% $0
2005 7,308,633 632,674 6,675,959 100 0
2006 7,602,919 667,539 6,935,380 100 0

The contributions made by the State of Maryland on behalf of the Schoot System were recognized as both revenue and expenditures in
the General Fund as required by GASB Statement No. 24.
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Component Units (continued)

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary’'s County

Retirement and pension plan

Description

All gualified career employees of the Library are required to join the Maryland State Teachers' Pension Plan or the Maryland State
Employees' Pension Plan. Some employees hired before January 1, 1980 have retained membership in the Maryland State Teachers'
or Employees’ Retirement Systems. All plans have provisions for early retirement, death and disability benefits. Participants become
eligibte for a vested retirement allowance after 5 years of service. The Plans are an agent multiple-employer public employee
retirement system. The State Retirement and Pension System of Maryland is the administrator of the Systems. The System was
established and benefits are provided by the State Personnel and Pensions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. The separately
issued financial statements of the System may be obtained by contacting the administrator.

Maryland State Pension Systems

Participants in the Pension Plans contribute 2% of their eamings. Pensions normally start at age 62 or after 30 years of service, but
with 15 or more years of service an employee can elect to have a reduced pension begin at age 55. Pensions are based upon the
average of the employees' highest three years' pay. Cost of living increases are limited to 3% per annum.

Maryland State Retirement Systems

Participants in the Retirement Systems contribute a fixed percentage of salary. Persons leaving the Library after 5 years of service
may withdraw their contributions, or the contributions may be left in the retirement fund until age 60, when the individual would be
eligible for a reduced retirement allowance. An employee may retire at age 60 or after 30 years of service and be eligible for fult
benefits. Reduced benefits are paid to employees retiring before age 60 after 25 years of service. Benefits are based upon the
average of the employees' highest three years' pay.

Funding Policy

The State Retirement and Pensions Article requires contributions by active members and their employees. Rates for required
contributions by active members are established by law. Members of the retirement systems are required to contribute from 5% to 7%
of compensation. Members of the pension systems are required to contribute 2% of compensation.

Contribution rates are established by annual actuarial valuations. The unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) is being amortized, as a leve!
percentage of payroll, in two distinct pieces. The UAAL which existed as the June 30, 2000 actuarial valuation is being amortized over
the remaining 15-year period to June 30, 2020. Each new layer of UAAL arising subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2000 is being
amortized in separate annual layers over a 25-year period. The equivalent single amortization period is 30 years. The State of
Maryland, the Maryland Automobile Insurance Fund and Injured Workers' Insurance Fund and 135 participating governmental units
make all of the employer and other contributions to the System.
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9. Retirement plans {continued)

Component Units (continued)

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County (continued)

Retirement and pension plan {continued)

Funding Policy (continued)

The Library provides pension contributions for normal cost and accrued actuarial liability. For the year ended June 30, 2006, the
Library's total payroll and payroll for covered employees were $1,603,804 and $1,487,973, respectively. No contributions were made

by the Library for the year ended June 30, 2006.

For fiscal year 2006, the State contributed approximately $135,317 to the State Retirement and Pension System on behalf of the
Library. In accordance with GASB Statement Number 24, the State’s contribution amount has been shown as State aid revenue and
pension expenditure. The State’s contribution amounted to approximately 9.09% of covered payroll.

Actuarial Assumptions

a. Return on investment of 7.75% compounded annually (adopted June 30, 2003)

b. Projected salary increases of 4% compounded annually due to inflation (adopted June 30, 2003 )

C. Salary increases due to seniority and merit are projected at 0.00-11.96% per annum (adopted June 30, 2003 )

d. Postretirement benefit increases are projected at 3-4% per annum depending on the system (adopted June 30, 2003 )

e Rates of mortality, termination, disablement and retirement are based on actual experience from 1981 through 2002 (adopted

June 30, 2003)

f. Member payroll assumed to increase 4% annually (adopted June 30, 2003)

Trend information

June 30
2005 2004 2003
Actual pension cost $ 805,564 $710,632 $ 654,578
Percentage contributed 83% 89% 92%
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9. Retirement plans {continued)

Component Units (continued)

Metropolitan Commission

Retirement and pension plan

On March 18, 2004, MetCom adopted a Section 457 plan. Under the terms of the plan, employees may contribute up to 25% of their
salary, up to the contribution limits, to the plan. No employer contributions are made to this plan.

Effective July 1, 2004, MetCom joined the Maryland State Retirement and Pension System. Under the terms of entry into the system,
MetCom will grant 100% credit for prior service of eligible employees. The actuarial cost of entry into the Maryland State Retirement
and Pension System for service prior to June 30, 2004, was $3,392,774.

Description

All qualified career employees of MetCom are required to join the Maryland State Employees’ Pension Plan. The plans have
provisions for early retirement, death and disability benefits. Participants become eligible for a vested retirement allowance after 5
years of service. The Plans are an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. The State Retirement and Pension
System of Maryland is the administrator of the Systems. The System was established and benefits are provided by the State
Personnel and Pensions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland The separately issued financial statements of the System may be
obtained by contacting the administrator,

Maryland State Pension Systems

Participants in the Pension Plans contribute 2% of their eamings. Pensions normally start at age 62 or after 30 years of service, but
with 15 or more years of service an employee can efect to have a reduced pension begin at age 55. Pensions are based upon the
average of the employees’ highest three years' pay. Cost of living increases are limited to 3% per annum.

94




The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2006

9. Retirement plans (continued)

Component Units (continued)

Metropolitan Commission {continued)

Funding policy

The State Retirement and Pensions Article requires contributions by active members and their employees. Rates for required
contributions by active members are established by law. Members of the retirement systems are required to contribute from 5% to 7%
of compensation. Members of the pension systems are required to contribute 2% of compensation.

Contribution rates are established by annual actuarial valuations. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) is being amortized,
as a fevel percentage of payroll, in two distinct pieces. The UAAL which existed as of the June 30, 2000 actuarial valuation is being
amortized over the remaining 15-year period to June 30, 2020. Each new fayer of UAAL arising subsequent to the year ended

June 30, 2000, is being amortized in separate annual layers over a 25-year period. The equivalent single amortization period is 30
years. The State of Maryland, the Maryland Automobite Insurance Fund, the Injured Workers’ Insurance Fund and 135 participating
governmental units make afl of the employer and other contributions to the System.

MetCom provides pension contributions for normal cost and accrued actuarial liability. For the year ended June 30, 2006, MetCom's
total payrolt and payroll for covered employees were $3,201,637 and $2,930,626, respectively, MetCom's contribution to the System
for the year ended June 30, 2006, was $190.419.

Actuarial assumptions

a. Return on investment of 7.75% compounded annually (adopted June 30, 2003).

b. Projected salary increases of 4% compounded annually due to inflation (adopted June 30, 2003).

C. Salary increases due to seniority and merit are projected at 0.00-11.96% per annum (adopted June 30, 2003).

d. Postretirement benefit increases are projected at 3-4% per annum depending on the system (adopted June 30, 2003).

e. Rates of mortality, termination, disablement and retirement are based on actual ‘experience from 1981 through 2002 (adopted

June 30, 2003).
f. Member payroll assumed to increase 4% annually (adopted June 30, 2003).

Trend information

June 30
2005 2004 2003
Actual pension cost $ 805,564 $710,632 $ 654,578
Percentage contributed 83% 89% 92%
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10. Segment information for enterprise funds

The County maintains three enterprise funds. Recreation services are accounted for in the recreation revolving fund, while the
Wicomico Municipal Golf Course receives user service charges for the use of facilities, which include a golf course and a restaurant.
The Medical Adult Daycare Center provides a wide range of supportive health and social services during the day to the mentally or
physically handicapped adults of St. Mary's County in order to prevent or postpone institutionalization. Segment information for the year

ended June 30, 2006 is as follows:

Medical Wicomico Recreation Total

Adult Municipal Revolving Enterprise

Daycare Golf Course Fund Funds
Operating revenue $ 129,384 $1,160,645 $2,219,694 $3,509,723
Depreciation $ 0 $ 93984 $ 3199 $ 97,183
Operating income (loss) $(531,265) § 37777 § (93,382 $ (586,870)
Change in net assets $ 470,897 $ 78119 $ (47,395) $ 501,621
Plant, property and equipment
additions $ 0 $ 34927 $ 0 $ 34927
Net working capital $(146,447) $ 1,004,576 $ 6494 $ 864,623
Total assets $ 96,135 $ 3,530,975 $ 305,023 $3,832,133
Total equity $(172,428) $ 3,085,465 $ 13,264 $2,926,301

11. Intedund receivables

individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances are composed of the following as of June 30, 2006:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
Primary Government
General Fund '
Special Revenue Fund $ 216,750
Capital Projects Fund 39,146,275
Enterprise Fund 1,351,456
Special Revenue Funds
General Fund $ 216,750
Capital Projects Funds
General Fund 39,146,275
Enterprise Funds
General Fund 1,351,456
Total due from/to other funds : $40,714.481 $40.714.481
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11. Interfund receivables {continued)

Component Units

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
Component Unit-St. Mary's County
Building Authority Commission $165,809
Component Unit-Board of Library
Trustees for St. Mary's County 273,266
Primary Government-General Fund $439,075
Total due to/from Primary Government
to Component Unit $439.075 $439,075
12. Mortgage receivable
The mortgage receivable amount reported represents amounts owed to the County by St. Mary's Hospital for the payment of the St
Mary's County Refunding Hospital Bonds of 1993 ($1,600,000) and the St. Mary's County Hospital Bonds of 2003 ($19,235,000).
13. Commitments and contingencies

Primary Government

There are several pending lawsuits in which the County is involved. The County attorney estimates that the potential claims against the
County not covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial statements of the County.

The County participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, principal of which are the Departments of Education, Health
and Human Services and Health and Mental Hygiene grant programs. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by
the grantors or their representatives. The audits of these programs for the year ended June 30, 2006, have not yet been completed.
Accordingly, the County's compliance with applicable grant requirements wili be verified in connection with performing the County's
Single Audit. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time,
although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Component Units

St. Mary's County Public Schools

Leqal Proceedings

In the normal course of operations, the School System is subject to lawsuits and claims. In the opinion of management, the disposition
of such lawsuits and claims will not have a material effect on the School System’s financial position or results of operations.
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13. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

Component Units (continued)

St. Mary's County Public Schools {continued)

School Construction

As of June 30, 2006, the School System had entered into various school construction commitments which are not reflected in the
Statement of Net Assets or Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds, since they will be funded by the State of Maryland or County bond

issues, totaling approximately $4,670,044.

Grant Program

The School System participates in @ number of state and federally assisted grant programs which are subject to financial and
compfiance audits by the grantors or their representatives. Such federal programs were audited in accordance with the Federal Office
of Management and Budget's Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Qraganizations for the current
year. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the

Schoot System expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Board of Library Trustees for St. Mary's County

Grant Audit

The Library receives federal funds, which are passed through the State of Maryland to the Library for specific purposes. The grants are
subject to review and audit by the Maryland State Department of Education. Such audits could result in a request for reimbursement
by the State for expenditures disaliowed under the terms and conditions of the granting agency. In the opinion of the Library's
management, such disallowances, if any, will not be significant.

Support

The Library receives a substantial amount of its support from intergovemmental sources. A significant reduction in the level of this
support, were this to occur, might have an effect on the Library's programs and activities.

14. Post-employment benefits

St. Mary's County Government retirees, retirees' family members and the family members of deceased employees under age 65 are
eligible for health, prescription drug and vision care insurance benefits. Those over age 65 are eligible for a Medicare supplement,

including heaith, prescription drug and vision care insurance benefits.

Eligible persons include employees with a minimum of five (5) years of eligible County Service entering an immediate retirement;
employees with a minimum of ten (10) years of eligible County service placed on a deferred retirement; family members of deceased
employees; and family members of retirees.

The County's contribution rate for retirees is prorated at 1/16th for each year of eligible County service up to a maximum contribution
rate of 90%. The County's contribution for disabled retirees is 90% regardiess of length of service.

Family members of deceased employees may continue benefits at 100% of the premium cost.

The autherity for health care benefits is contained within the County's Personnel Policies and Procedures manual. It is not a statutory
or contractual requirement and may be changed or modified by the Board of County Commissioners.
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14. Post-employment benefits (continued)

The County's cost for the post-employment benefits are currently being paid on a pay-as-you-go basis. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, there was an average of 149 people participating in post-employment health and life benefits at an annual cost to the

County of $1,248 602.

Other post-employment benefits

In June 2004, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board released Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Post-empioyment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Statement 45 establishes standards for the measurement, recognition,
and display of other post-employment benefit (OPEB) expenses/expenditures and related liabilities, assets and note disclosures.
OPEB inciudes post-employment healthcare as well as other forms of post-employment henefits, such as life insurance, when provided
separately from a pension ptan. Under Statement 45, governments must quantify and recognize the cost of OPEB attributable to
former and current employees. The County must implement this standard for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2007.

The County, and each of the component units, contracted for an actuarial analysis of their post-employment liability, in anticipation of
preparing for and complying with Statement 45. The actuarial report included the Primary Government, St. Mary's County and the
following Component Units: St. Mary's County Public Schools, St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission and the St. Mary's County
Library. The valuation quantified the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (JUAAL) and the annual required contribution (ARC) as of
July 1, 2007, based on the current benefit structure. The following table represents those amounts:

Primary Government Estimated
UAAL ARC
St. Mary's County Government $64,715000  $6,100,000
Component Units Estimated
UAAL ARC
St. Mary's County Public Schools $81,154,000  $7,991,000
St. Mary's County Metropolitan Commission $4,232,000  $506,000
St. Mary's County Library $1,707,000  $169,000

The results are based on an assumed 7.75% present value discount factor, which assumes a management policy of funding the ARC
resulting in long-term investment returns.  If management adopts a non-funding or partial funding policy, the discount factor wil
decrease, thus increasing both the UAAL and ARC. If management changes the retiree health benefit plans to reduce costs, the UAAL
and ARC will decrease. Currently the County and its Component Units fund post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.
These amounts, at a minimum, serve to partially fund the annual requirements under Statement 45.

As part of the approved FY2007 budget, the County designated $3.5 million from the FY 2006 surplus for the OPEB fiability. During
FY2007, alternatives will be considered for bath the benefit structure and the funding in order to assure timely compliance with

Statement 45.

15. Landfill closure and postclosure cost

State and federal laws and regulations require The County Commissioners for St. Mary's County to place a final cover on landfill sites
when the site stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the
County Commissioners for St. Mary's County report a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in
each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance shest date. The $2,700,000 reported as landfill closure and postclosure
care liability at June 30, 2006, represents the cumulative amount reported to date. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes

in technology or changes in regulations.
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15. Landfill closure and postclosure cost (continued}

Estimated closure and posiclosure costs were taken from a 1990 Cost Analysis, for cell numbers three and five, and from current
contract commitments for closure for cell numbers one, two and four. A 3% inflation factor was assumed. Closure costs are expected to
be funded by a bond issue or other form of debt in the year of closing. Postclosure costs are budgeted and paid annually.

16. Pass-through proceeds

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain
Grants and Other Financial Assistance, the County recognizes revenue and expenditures for pass-through proceeds, which generally
occur under State and Federal grants. For the year ended June 30, 2006, the County has recognized pass-through revenues in the
amount of $2,902,547 and expenditures in the amount of $2,802,495. Entities to which the funds have been passed through are:
Walden Sierra, Inc., Three Oaks Homeless Shelter, So. MD. Tri-County Community Action Committee and St. Mary's County Housing

Authority.

17. Risk management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; erors and omissions;
injuries to employees; and related disasters. The County is a member of the Local Govemment Insurance Trust (LGIT) sponsored by
the Maryland Municipal League (MML) and the Maryland Association of Counties. The LGIT is a self- insured public entity risk pool
offering general liability, excess liability, business auto liability, police legal liability, public official liability, environmental liability and
property coverage.

LG!T is capitalized at an actuarially determined level to provide financiat stability for its local government members and to reduce the
possibility of assessment. The trust is owned by the participating counties and cities and managed by a Board of Trustees elected by
the members.

Annual premiums are assessed for the various poticy coverages. During fiscal year 2008, the County paid premiums of $701,369 to the
trust. The agreement for the formation of LGIT provides that the trust will be self-sustaining through member premiums and wil
reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $1,000,000 for each insured event. Settled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year.

18. Prior Period Adjustment

Governmental activities

A prior period adjustment in the amount of $4,710,622 was made to the general fund to correct fund balance as of July 1, 2005, and to
remove capital assets as of June 30, 2005. Capital assets removed do not meet our capitalization threshold, and should not have been
capitalized. We implemented GASB 34 beginning in FY2002, and at that time, revised the capitalization threshold. These assets should
not have been reflected in the financial report. This prior period adjustment represents the final adjustment required to fully implement
GASB 34.

Business-type activities

A prior period adjustment in the amount of $233,008 was made to the proprietary funds to correct fund balance as of July 1, 2005, and
to remove capital assets as of June 30, 2005. Capital assets removed do not meet our capitalization threshold, and should not have
been capitalized. We implemented GASB 34 beginning in FY2002. When implementing GASB 34 our capitalization policy was changed
and affected both Governmental and Business-type activities. This prior period adjustment represents the final adjustment required to
fully implement GASB 34 and the effects of the change in capitalization policy.
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRANCES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Favorable
Budgeted Amourts (Unfavorable)
Qriginal Final Actual Variance
REVENUES

Property Taxes $60,283,121 $60,283,121 $63.198,555 $2,915,.834
Income Taxes 56,350,000 56,350,000 56,687,230 337,230
Energy Taxes 3,200,000 3,200,000 2,689,102 (510,898)
Recordation Taxes 6,700,000 6,700,000 11,309,680 4,609,680
Other Local Taxes 820,000 820,000 935,653 115,653
Highway User Revenues 6,867,220 6,967,220 7,204,289 327,069
Licenses and Permits 1,456,892 1,349,305 1,267,425 (81,880}
State/Federal Grants 5,401 876 5,490,934 6,705,837 1,214,903
Charges for Services 5,751,031 6,098,570 5,258,972 (839,998)
Fines and Forfeitures 276,877 276,877 267,731 {9.146)
Investment and Cther Revenues 1,045,962 716,582 3,530,719 2,814,137

Sub-otal 148,253,008 148,253 009 159,145,593 10,882,584
Pass-Throughs ¢ 0 2,902,547 2,902 547
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES $148,253,008 $148,253,009 $162,048,140 $13,795131

EXPENDITURES

General Government $17,900,024 $18,310,166 $17,121,275 $1,188,891
Public Safety 24,736,045 24,483,226 24,141,881 341,345
Public Works 9,226,147 9,332,926 8743272 589,654
Health 1,217,116 1,205,122 1,202,193 2929
Social Services 3,614,362 3,732.339 3,602,590 129,749
Primary and Secondary Education 64,461,511 64,459,811 64,446,258 13,553
Past-Secondary Education 2,296,763 2,346,763 2,346,763 0
Parks, Recreation, and Culture 3,182 494 3,111,239 2891273 219,966
Libraries 1,781,142 1,781,142 1,781,142 0
Conservation of Natural Resources 318 658 317,946 314,206 3,740
Housing 1,123,366 976,893 902,306 74,587
Economic Development and Opportunily 2,143,456 2,390,500 2,500,453 (109.953)
Debt Service 13,288,553 13,229,844 12,856,499 373,345
Inter-governmental 55,370 55,370 55,370 i
Other 1,172,150 1,089,850 1,038,066 51,784

Sub-total 146,514,957 146,823,137 143,943,547 2,879,590
Pass-Throughs & 0 2,902,495 (2,902,495}
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES $146,514,957 $146,823 137 $146,846,042 (322,805)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Use of Fund Balance to Fund Operations 3,026,965 3,127,754 0 (3,127,754}
Transfer to Capital Projects (3,151,010} (3,751,010 (3,754,010) 0
Transter (MADS Subsidy) (589,007 (589,007) {589,007) 0
Reserves {1,025,000) (217,608) 0 217,609
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES {1,738,052) (1,429,872) {4,340,017) (2,910,145}
EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SCURCES OVER EXPENDCITURES AND GTHER
FINANCING USES 50 30 $10,862,081 $10,862,081

See Independent Auditor's Report
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SHERIFF'S OFFICE RETIREMENT PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Schedules of employer contributions and funding progress for the Sheriffs Office Retirement Plan are presented below:

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal Year Annual Percentage of Net Pension
Ended Pension Cost APC Contributed Obligation
06/30/99 $ 596,605 100% $ 0
06/30/00 683,423 100% 0
06/30/01 786,339 100% 0
06/30/02 932,745 100% 0
6/30/03 1,204,825 100% 0
6/30/04 1,652,971 100% 0
6/30/05 2,036,981 100% 0
8/30/06 2,219,197 100% 0

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued UAAL as a
Valuation Value Liability (AAL) - Unfunded  Funded  Covered - Percentage of
Date Of Assets Entry Age AAL (UAAL)  Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
01/01/97  $11,027,088 $11,986,552" $959,464  92.0%  $4,433,660 21.6%
01/01/99 16,531,918 16,704,552 172,634  99.0% 5,358,227 3.2%
01/01/01 18,744,434 20,948,384 2,203,950  89.5% 6,040,098 36.5%

01/01/03 18,680,033 29,154,913 10,474,880  64.1% 7,165,684 146.2%
Before Assumption Change

07/01/04 21,635,590 34,171,854 12,536,264 633% 7,881,721 159.1%
After Assumption Change
07/01/04 21,635,590 35,481,603 13,846,013 610% 7,881,721 175.7%

* This liability was calculated using the entry age normal method. The projected unit credit method was used for later years.

See Independent Auditor's Report
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006

Fire And Rescue

Special Revolving Loan Emergency Services Total
Assessments Fund Support Fund Non-Major
ASSETS
Due from other funds 30 $1,191,482 $118.419 $1,309,501
Special tax assessments receivable, current portion 1,803 4] 0 1,903
Notes receivable, Fire and Rescue loans, curent portion 0 237 472 0 237472
£mergency Support taxes receivable 0 0 23,325 28,325
Notes receivable, Fire and Rescue loans (net of current portion) ¢ 1,048,191 8 1,048,191
Special tax assessments receivable {net of current portion) 2,017 825 l 0 2,017,825
Total Assets 52,019,728 $2,477 145 $146,744 $4.643 617
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accoun!s payable 30 $350,000 $8,047 §$358,047
Deferred revenue 2018,546 1,285,663 0 3.305.209
Due lo other funds 1,093,151 [y i 1,083,151
Total Liabilities $3,112.697 $1.635.663 - 48,047 $4 756,407
FUND BALANCES

Reserved {41,002 969) $0 $7.992 ($1.084.977)
Unreserved, designated 1} 841,482 136,705 972187
Total Fund Balances {$1,002,969) 3841482 $138,697 ($112,750)

$146,744 $4,643 617

Tolal Liabiliies and Fund Balances $2,019.728 §2477 145




REVENUES

Fire and Rescue Loan Repayments
Special Assessments

Emergency Services Support Tax
Other

EXPENDITURES

Loans to Fire and Rescue

Debt Service

LOSAP

Qperating Allocations
Advanced Life Support
Emergency Services Commitlee
Grants

Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES

Beginning of Year

End of Year

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Fire And Rescue Emergency
Special Revolving Loan Services Support Total
Assessments Fund Fund Non-Major
$0 $247.221 $0 $247,21
179,345 0 0 179,345
] [y 1,159,837 1,155,837
0 47,713 13,807 61,522
$179,345 $254,936 $1,173,644 $1,647,925
$0 $350,000 30 $350,000
57 881 0 184,537 242 418
0 0 403,032 403,032
0 0 340,000 340,000
0 0 94647 94 647
0 0 24 877 24977
0 o 33,083 33,053
$57 681 $350,000 $1,080,246 $1,488,127
$121,484 {$55,064) $093.338 $159,798
{1.214,433) B9E, 548 45299 (272,588)
{$1,092,969) 5841482 $138,697 ($112,790}
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGETARY {NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Favorable
Budgeted Amounts {Unfavorable)
Original Fina! Actual Variance
PROPERTY TAXES
Real and personal property
Real Property Taxes $55,436.491 $55,436.491 : $57.281 815 $2,345324
Personal Property 258 360 258,380 168,845 {89,435)
Public Utilities 2475804 2,475,804 2,679,049 203,245
OCrdinary Business Corporations 2,325 241 2,325,241 2,715,322 390,081
Additions and Abatements (468 105) {468,105) {448.473) 18,632
Penalties ang Interest 456,856 456,856 512,852 55,898
State Homeowners Credit (Circuit Breaker) 480,533 480,533 496,120 15,587
Homeowners Tax Credit {County) {480,533 {480,533} {454,420 16,113
Other Tax Credits {201,546) (201,546) (241,255) (38,709
Total Property Taxes $60,283121 $60,283,121 $63,198 955 $2,915834
Income Tax
Local Income Tax $56,350,000 $56,350,000 $56,687 230 $337,230
Other Local Taxes
Recordation Taxes 6,700,000 6,700,000 11,309,680 4,609,680
Energy Taxes 3,200,000 3,200,000 2,689,102 {510,898)
Public Accommodations Tax 500,000 500,000 552,163 52,183
Trailer Park Tax 200,000 200,000 232,253 32,253
Admissions and Amusement 120,000 120.000 151,237 3237
Total Other Locat Taxes $10,720.000 $10,720,000 $14,934.435 $4.214 435
State-Shared Taxes - Highway Users $6,967 220 $6,967,220 " $7,294,789 £327.069
TOTAL TAXES $134,320,341 $134,320,341 $142 114,509 $7,794 568
LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business 237,500 232,000 245,268 13,266
Marriage/Animal Licenses 11,700 11,700 11,083 {647)
QOther §06,692 504,605 574830 70,225
CATV Franchise Fees 601,000 601,000 436,276 {164,724}
TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 1,456,892 $1,348,305 $1,267 425 ($81,880)
INTER-GOVERNMENTAL
General Government 289,380 535,558 592,480 56,932
Public Safety 2.510,984 2,211,350 3,334,103 1,122,753
Public Works 1,262,780 1,416,495 1,365,549 {50 946)
Social Services 928 457 941,518 881,252 (60,267)
Parks, Recreation and Culture 124,000 103,485 75,602 {27,883)
Economic Development & Opportunity 285,285 282517 456,841 174,324
TOTAL INTER-GOVERNMENTAL $5.401 876 $5,480,834 $6,705,837 $1.214 503

See Independent Auditor's Report
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR $T. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
{CONTINUED)
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts {Unfavorable)
Origmal Final Actual Variance
CHARGES FOR SERVICES
General Government $2,008734 $2,370,921 $2,240,097 ($130,824}
Public Safety 1,028403 1,228,403 762,140 (466,263}
Public Works 985,492 985,492 945,963 (39,529
Social Services 104 861 106,261 121,181 14,830
Farks, Recreation and Culture 323,592 323,582 199,086 {124,486}
Reimbursement - Housing Authority 1,219,949 1,084,301 990,485 {93,816)
TOTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES 5,751,031 6,098,970 5,258,872 {839,898)
FINES AND FORFEITURES
General Government 272877 272 877 260.383 {12,494}
Public Safety 4000 4,000 7,348 3,348
TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES $276,877 $276,877 $267,731 189,145)
OTHER REVENUES
General Government
Interest 536,300 536,300 3253422 27117122
Other 56,142 56,142 208 645 152,503
Grant Reserve 400,000 72,590 0 172,590}
Contributions and Donations 51,550 51,550 : 68852 17102
TOTAL OTHER REVENUES $1,045,992 $716,582 $3,530.719 $2.814137
TOTAL, BEFORE PASS-THROUGH PROCEEDS $148,253,009 $148,253,009 $159,145.593 $10,892,584
Pass-through Proceeds 0 0 2,802 547 2902 547
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Appropriation of Fund Balance 3,026,965 3127754 0 (3,127,754
TOTAL REVENUES INCLUDING PASS-THROUGHS $151,279,974 $151,380,763 $162,048,140 $10,667,377

See independent Auditor's Report
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR $T. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEQULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGETARY {NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Favoradle
Budgeted Amounts {Unfavorabie)
Criginal Final Actual Variance
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
LeqislativerCounly Commissioners
Legislative/County Commissioners §325.311 3345.185 $322,346 $22.839
Couniy Administrator 363,367 381717 32710 29007
Fublic Information 335200 311,200 294 820 16,380
County Altorney 491,253 512,254 482,750 29,504
Legislative/Countly Commissioners 1629131 1,830,356 1.432 826 97 730
Department of Finance
Director of Finance 493,559 484 659 474,000 10,659
Accounting 415 556 415,036 376,308 33748
Auditing 45,360 45,360 45,080 280
Procurement 246,344 243 844 241,076 2,768
Copy Center 26,440 26,440 19,939 6,501
Depariment of Finance 1,228,259 1,210,359 1,156,403 53,956
Information Technology 1937872 1,874,358 1950484 23874
Human Resources
Human Resources 571.916 554,215 522544 31672
Risk Maragement 856,593 864,529 803175 61,754
Human Resources 1,428,508 1,419,145 1,325,719 93426
Depariment of Facilities Management
Capital Projects 183085 144,460 136,643 7817
Building Services 2,895,610 3,254,347 3002711 251,636
Carter State Reimbursement 486,240 519,240 467707 151,533
Deparment of Facilities Management 3,564.935 4,018,047 3,607,061 410,986
Dept of Land Use/Growth Managemen!
Adminstralion 571842 530,792 409 697 121,095
Comprehensive Planning 550,590 518,384 439,767 78617
Development Services 538,519 557,468 477,763 79,705
Planning Commission 23,092 23142 21,210 1932
Boards and Commissions 18,340 19,340 14,724 4616
Historical Preservation 3,060 3,060 9 2,669
Grants 71.100 20,100 62518 {42418}
Oept of Land Use/Growth Managemeant 1777543 1,672 286 1,426,070 246,216
Department of PW and Transportation
Development Review 294,643 310,600 225956 84,644
MailroomiMessengar Services 113527 113,027 110,386 2641
Vehicle Maintenance Shop 1,141 861 1,131,811 1,062,672 69,138
Departmenl of PW and Transportation 1,650,031 1,555438 1,399,014 156424
Department of Bidg Permit Services
Permil Services 242,682 236,082 226,754 9328
Inspections & Compliance 463,535 458,335 474,850 24,485
Board of Elecincal Examiners 8,545 8.945 6825 2118
Department of Bldg Parmit Services 715,162 744,362 708,430 35932
Circuit Court
Administration 815,186 804 986 747 580 57 406
Law Library 46,100 48,100 45 561 539
Grants 207,045 257 827 333,708 (75.882)
Orphan's Court 30,530 29430 27,929 1501
Circuit Court 1,098,861 1,138,343 1154774 {16,436}
Office of the Stale's Attorney
Judiciaf 1,657,854 1645432 1,588,434 56,998
Grants 429,347 426020 404 528 21492
Office of the State's Attorney 2.087.20n 2.071.452 1,992 962 78480
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County Treasurer
Alcohol Beverages Board
Suparvisors of Elections
Ethics Commission

Total General Government

PUBLIC SAFETY
Emergency Management
Emergency Management
Animal Control
Emergency Management

Emergency Communications Center
Emergency Communications Center
Emergency Radio Communications
Grants

Emergency Communications Center

Office of the Sheriff
Law Enforcement
Corrections
Training
Canine
Grants
Office of Ihe Sheriff

Volunteer Fire Depts. & Rescue Squads
Totat Public Safety

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION
Department of PW and Transporialion
Administration
Engineering Services
Construction & taspechions
County Highways
Solid Waste
Recycling
St Mary's County Airport
SL Mary's Transit System
Department of PW angd Transporalicn

Maryland Dept. of Agricullure Weed Control

Tolat Public Works and Transportation

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR §T. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008
[CONTINUED)
Favorable
Budgeled Amounts {Unfavorable)
Criginal Firal Actual Variance
$345.010 $338,510 $331,603 $6,907
203,321 203,31 192 465 10,856
424,495 424,455 434 274 {9.779}
9.694 9,604 9,385 0
$17.500.024 §18.310.166 $17121,275 $1.188,891
223,114 213714 200,690 13.024
547,992 545,892 501,274 44,619
71,707 759,607 701964 57,641
1,822,072 1736122 1,426,803 309,319
732,168 728,968 674,925 54,043
9,000 208,638 577,624 {367 986)
2,563,240 2,674,728 2,679,352 {4624)
13,412,997 11,255,635 12,888,798 366,837
6773379 6,694,779 6,418,051 275728
100430 100,410 96,436 3974
1,775 11,775 7641 4134
902,537 786,292 1,148,633 {362,347)
21,201.098 20,848,891 20,560,565 288,226
200,000 200,000 200,000 0
$24.736,045 $24 483 226 $24 141 881 $341 345
355,035 354 035 348 813 5222
300,240 273,240 268,041 5199
410,321 41121 94,728 16,492
3032,823 2,953,305 2,790,608 162,657
2518738 2,579,712 2477450 102,262
428742 429,092 373,547 55,545
15,679 15,679 11843 3836
2,148 6B 2,302,842 2 065,081 237,781
9,212 47 9,318,126 8,730,112 589,014
13,800 13,800 13,160 640
$9.226.147 $9.132,926 $8.743.272 §589.654
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST, MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
{CONTINUVED)
Favgrable
Budgeted Amounts {Unfavprable)
Onginat Final Actual Variance
HEALTH |
Operating Allocation
Mental Health Authority of 1. Mary's §54,945 $54,945 $54,945 50
Health Department 1,120,671 1108677 1,108,087 536
Operating Allocation 1,175,616 1163622 1.163.026 396
Office of the State's Attorney
Project Graduation 41 500 41,500 39,167 2313
Total Heaith $1.217,116 $1,205.122 §1,202,183 $2929
SOCIAL SERVICES
Marcey Halfway House 412,632 112632 413036 1404)
Office on Aging
Office on Aging 1,191,396 1,174,3% 1,093,076 81,320
Oakley Center 54823 60,723 56,684 4,035
SMILE 31,700 31,700 31,500 200
Grants 706,218 719,680 580,753 38,927
Cffice on Aging 1,884 137 1,986,499 1,862,013 124,488
Department of Sacial Services 342.408 342 408 138,187 4,221
Operating Allocation
Haspice of St. Mary's 15,000 15,000 15,000 0
The ARC of Southern Maryland, Inc. 132150 132,150 132150 i}
Big Brothers / Big Sisters 4,000 4.000 2554 1,446
Catholic Charilies 15,060 15,600 15,000 G
So.Md. Center for LIF.E 15,000 15,000 15.000 0
The Cenler for Life Enrichment 155,908 155.908 155,908 o
Greenwell Foundation 30,000 30,000 30,000 Q
St Mary's Caring, Ing 3,000 3,000 3000 0
Theee Caks Center 59,500 58,500 59,500 0
Tn-Ceunty Alternatives for Youth/F amilies 26,250 25,250 26,250 8
Tri-County Community Action 17,751 17,751 17,751 0
Tri-County Youth Services Bureau 116,478 116,479 116,479 0
Unified Commission for Afro-Americans 5,000 5.000 5,000 0
Walden/Sierra 195,038 310,853 310,853 0
Women's Center 84,909 94,809 84,909 0
Operating Allocation 874,985 890,800 989,354 1,446
Total Social Services $3.614,167 $3.732,339 $3,602,580 $123749
PRIMARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION )
Board of Education £2,634 224 62634,224 62,634,224 0
Nan-Public School Bus Transporiation 1815287 1813 587 1,800,034 11,553
Cperating Aliocation
Literacy Council of St. Mary's County 12,000 12,000 12,000 0
Tolat Primary and Secondary Education $64 461,511 364 456,811 364 446 258 $13,553
POST-SECONDARY EDUCATION
Coliege of Southern Maryland
County Funding - general operations 2,240,753 2,290,763 2,290,763 0
Operating Allocation
SI. Mary's College Scholarship Fung 6,000 6,000 6,000 0
Southern Md. Higher Education Center 50,000 50,000 50.000 4
Operating Allocation 26,000 56,000 56.000 0
Tolal Post-Secondary Education §2,296.763 §2,346,753 $2,346,763 $0
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
[CONTINUED)
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfavorable}
Criginal Final Actual Variance
PARKS, RECREATION AND CULTURE
Depariment of Recreation and Parks
Administration §896,702 $881.202 849,662 $31.540
Parks Maintenance 1,608,153 1,590,503 1,443,700 146 803
Mugeumn Division 419,139 411,539 387.3M1 14,168
Granis 134,000 103,495 76,040 27 455
Department of Recrealion and Parks 3,057,994 2,986,739 2,766,773 219 966
Operating Allocation
St Mary's Co. Hislonical Society 12,500 12,500 12,500 0
Historic St Mary's City Foundation 1,500 1,500 1,500 0
Lexington Park Liens Club 1,500 1,500 1,500 0
Maryland Historical Society 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
Patuxent River Navat Alr Museum 30,000 30.000 30,000 0
Lexingion Park Rotary-Cyster Festival 5,000 5.000 5.000 0
St Mary's County Art Councii 2,000 2.000 2,000 0
Sctierley Foundanon 50,000 50,000 50,000 0
SMC Forrest Cons Dist Bd. 1,000 1,000 1,000 0
St Mary's College River Concert Series 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
Seventn District Optimist 10,000 10,000 10,000 0
QOperaling Aliocation 124,500 124,500 124,500 0
Total Parks, Recreation, and Cuilure $3,182,494 $3111,239 $2,891273 $219 566
| IBRARIES
County Funding - general operabions 31,781,142 $1.78% 142 $1.781.142 30
CONSERVATION OF NATURAL RESOURCES
Cooperalive Extension Service 150,568 150,558 147476 3092
Sott Conservation District 47,495 47 495 47789 (214
Conservalion of Natral Resources 198,062 198,063 195245 2818
Allocation of Agticuiture and Seafood  (Division of DECD {75%)) 99,395 98,683 97 761 922
Operaling Aliocation
Wicomico Scenic River Commission 1,000 1000 1000 0
Southem Md. Resource Conservation/Dev 5,200 5.200 5200 ]
Watermen's Association 15,000 15,000 15005 (]
Operating Allocation 21,200 21,200 21,200 {
Total Conservation of Natural Resources $318,658 $317 948 $314.205 §3,740
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING
Total Housing §1,123.366 $976,893 3902 305 §74,687
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND OPPORTUNITY
Depl. of Econ & Comm Development
Administration/Office of the Director 225876 223526 219,189 4337
Tourism Developmenl 358,539 367 864 355,379 12,485
Agriculture & Seafood Development 132,527 131577 130,348 1,229
Less Allocation of Agricutiure ang Seafood  (see above) (99,365) (98.683) [97,761) 922)
Community Development 289,329 474 875 456,475 18.404
Grants 515,504 574,136 782,153 {208,017)
Dapt. of Econ & Comm Developmant 1,432,380 1,673,299 1,845,783 (172,484)
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THE COUNTY COMMISSICNERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND QTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGETARY (NON-GAAP) BASIS AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
{CONTINUED)
Favorable
Budgeted Amounts (Unfaverable)
Original Finai Actual Variance
Office of Community Services
Community Services $300 595 $300.745 $291,252 $9,493
Hurman Relalions Commission 2,233 2233 2,232 1
Commission for Women 900 500 785 15
Commission for Disabled 2000 2,000 1,970 10
VISTA Support 37,463 37.463 29,518 7,945
Office of Community Services 31N 343,341 325,757 17.584
Office of Communily Services
Grants 245 285 251,260 207313 43 947
Operating Aliocation
Farmers Market 1,000 1,000 0 1.000
Navy Ailiance 20,060 20000 20.000 0
So. Md. Child Care Resource Cenler 7,400 7.400 7,400 0
Tri-County Council 94,200 94,200 94,200 0
Qperaling Aliocation 122 500 122,500 121,600 1,000
Tolal Economic Development and Opportunity $2,143 456 $2,380.500 §2,500453 {$109,953)
DEBT SERVICE
Debt Service 312916553 $1.2 859 844 §12 856 4.59= §3 345
INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Leonardlown Tax Rebalg 55.370 35370 55,370 0
Total inter-Governmentat $55,370 $55 370 $55.370 30
OTHER
Employer Contributions-Reliree Health Benefils 1,145,150 1.062,850 1,023,481 39,369
Unemployment Compensation 11,000 11,000 {542) 11,542
Bank Service Fees 16 000 16,000 15,127 873
Total Other $1172 150 $1.086 850 £1,038 066 $51 784
Total Expenditures, Before Pass-Throughs 146.144,957 146,453,137 143,943 547 2,508,590
Pass-Through Expenditures 0 0 2.902,495 {32,902 495)
Total Expenditures, Including Pass-Throughs §146,144 957 $146,453 137 $146.846 042 {§392 905
RESERVES
Reserve - Bond Rating $370,000 $370.000 $757.669 ($387.689)
Reserve - Supplemenial Expenses 400,000 82603 0 92,609
Reserve - Rainy Day Fund 125,000 125,000 125,000 a
Reserve - Emergency Approprialions 500.000 o 0 o
Reserves 1,395.000 587 609 852,689 {295 080}
Total Reserves $1,395 000 §587 609 $882 669 ($295,080)
Total Expenditures, Including Pass-Throughs and Reserves $147.539.957 §147.040 746 $147 728 731 (667 485)
Transfers
Capital Projects - General Fund Transfer 3,151,010 3751010 3,751,010 0
Transfer (MADS Subsidy) 589,007 589,007 589,007 {
3,740,017 4,340,017 4,340,017 0
e ———
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses §151,279.974 $151.380 763 M 587 985
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THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF UNEXPENDED APPROPRIATIONS FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

LAND PRESERVATION

Agriculture Preservation $3,998,343 $3,998,343
HIGHWAYS

Adequate Public Facilities $231,433
Asphalt Overlay 465,424
Bridge/Culvert Replacement 165,255
Carver School/MD 246 Signal 36,605
Chaptico/Mechanicsvilte Road ' 110,508
Pegg Rd. Extensicn to Rt 5 473 455
County Mapping 79,466
Lexington Park Sidewalk/Streetscape 46,376
Mechanicsville Road 368,602
Tulagi Place Revitalization 659,495
Regional Stormwater Management 11,251
Roadside Obstacles 215,985
Streetscape Improvement 151,558
Transportation Plan 168,741 $3,184, 244
MARINE

Holiis Lake Inlet $13,000
Holly Peint Shore Erosion 9,320
Patuxent Beach Road Revetment 167,300
St. Jeromes Creek 525,328
Gibson Road 60,000
Thomas Road Revetment 889 $776,337
PUBLIC WORKS

Adult Detertion Center Booking/Inmate Processing $250,000
Adult Detention Center Maintenance & Repairs 217,31
Airport Environmental Assessment 15,512
Airport Imprevements 94,453
Building Maintenance & Repairs 86,933
Carter State Building Mainienance/Repair 508,452
Charlotte Hall Senior Center 4,156
Charlotte Hall Visitors Center 85,404
Lexington Manor EDI 223,994
County Office Building HVAC 2,205,513
Courthouse Addition/Renovation 73,520
Courthouse Humidity 120,797
College of Southern Maryland Humidity Control 846,600
Library System Assessment 36,735
Former Lexington Park Library ' 3892
Charlofte Hall Library Parking 69,573
Lexington Manor North MEDAAF 506,678
Lexington Manor South CDBG 665,012
Lexington Park Library 12,659
Parking/Site Improvements 257,286
Patuxent River Naval Museum-New 7,125,029
STS Bus Barn 322,500 $13,732,069
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{CONTINUED)
PIERS AND BOAT RAMPS
Derelict Boat Removal $35,745
Patuxent River Public Landing 300,000
Fox Harbor Landing 72,990
Paul Ellis Landing 99,000
Leonardtown Wharf 1,459,238
Tall Timbers Landing/Pier 99,000
PUBLIC SCHOOLS
ADA Transition Plan $105,574
Carver Elementary Addition 1,749,329
Elementary School 235/4 828,707
Greanview Knolls Roof 36,968
Hollywood/Chapticon Soil Erasion 800
Kindergarten Addition Oakville 590
Kindergarten Addition Dynard 1,887
Margaret Brent Addition/Renovation 423,542
Relecation Classrooms 240,603
Tech Center Addition 2,320,536
Leonardtown Elementary Addition 524,784
Kindergarten Addition Piney Peint 330,177
Kindergarten Addition Town Creek ES 225,965
Leonardtown Middle - Relocatables 133,851
Lecnardtown High - Relocatables 126,048
Great Milis High - Gym Floor 85,000
Ridge Elementary - parking site mods 406,865
Bethune Education Center - Roof 129,645
Site Acquisition Various 3,457,964
Relocatable Purchase - State 234,794
RECREATION & PARKS
Chaptico Park §723
Charlotte Hall Community Recreation Center 19,150
Dorsey Park improvement 158
Nicolet Park Expansion 3,498
Piney Point Lighthouse Museum 238,355
Parks ADA Access. 13,778
Piney Point Lighthouse Park 429518
Three Notch Trail 506,291
Wicomico Club House 1,360,189
Wicomice Courts Replacement 70,470
Mansfield Property Canoe/Kayak launch 8,959
Seventh District Park Improvements 466,626
Parks Land Acquisition 4,000
SOLID WASTE
Environmental Assessment $15,205
Solid Waste Facility 210,175
St. Andrews Area C 9451
St Andrews Area D 536,479

Total

Included in the above fotal is $10,616,402 in unexpended State and Federal projects appropriations.

THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS FOR ST. MARY'S COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF UNEXPENDED APPROPRIATIONS FOR CAPITAL PROJECTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

$2,065 973

$11,363,729

$3,121015

771,310

$39.013,020
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CPA, LLC REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The County Commissioners
for St. Mary's County, Maryland
Leonardtown, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the fiduciary fund activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County, Maryland, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County,
Maryland's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 20, 2006. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internat Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County,
Maryland's internal controt over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal controf over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the intemal control over financial reporting and
its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County Commissioners for St. Mary's County,
Maryland's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Govermnment Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the County Commissioners, management and

federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

L -
La Plata, Maryland % d—%% CQ /9 / g
October 20, 2006 /
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